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THE STATE INVESTMENT CORPORATION LTD

STATUTORY DISCLOSURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

The Directors have the p-leasure in submitting the annual report of The State Investment Corporation Ltd (‘the
Corporation”) together with the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Corporation is to provide equity finance to both existing and new enterprises in all
sectors of the Mauritian economy.

The registered office of the Corporation is Level 15, Air Mauritius Centre, 6, President John Kennedy Street,
Port Louis.

DIRECTORS

The following Directors held office during the year ended December 31, 2018 and unless otherwise stated, up
to date of signing the financial statements: -

SONOQO, Jaira) C.S.K -Chairman (As from May 18, 2018)

NAGHEE REDDY, Kritananda

NEERUNIUN, Premode

NILAMBER, Anoop Kumar

ACHARUZ, Apandsing (As from October 03, 2018)
Appointment after vear ended December 31, 2013

GOBURDHUN, Goolabchund -Managing Director {As from April 16, 2019)

JAUNBOCUS, Cader (As from May 15, 2019)

AYOOB SAAB, Mohummad Shamad (As from June 04, 2019)

Officers who served during the vear 2018 and ceased to be directors during the vear or subsequently
NAKHUDA, Ayub Hussein  -Chairman (Up to May 18, 2018)

VEERASAMY, Banoomatee  -Acting Managing Director (Up to March 29, 2018)
LUCHMEEPERSAD, Vidianand (Up to May 29, 2019)

SOONDRAM, Visvanaden (Up to October 05, 2019).

BEEJAN, Manickchand -Managing Director (As from April 01, 2018 up to February 28, 201
DIVIDENDS

Dividend proposed and paid during the year amounted to Rs.35m (2017: NIL).

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contract of the Manging Director is for a period of two years starting from April 16, 2019. None
of the other Directors has a service contract.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

The remuneration and benefits received and receivable during the period under review:-

(i) Direciors of The State Investment Corporation Ltd December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
_ Rs. Rs,
Executive Directors 4,205,554.27 3,751,970
Non-executive directors 2,891,590.92 2,380,000

7,097,145.19 6,631,970
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DIRECTORS’ SHARE INTERESTS

The Directors hoid no share of the Corporation whether directly or indirectly.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance or loans existed during the period under review between Corporation and its
directors.

DONATIONS December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Rs. Rs.
Donations made during the year 119,875 188,172
No political donation was made by the Corporation during the period under review.
AUDITORS’ FEES
The fees payable to the auditors, for audit and other services are:
December 31, December 31,
2018 2017
Rs. Rs.
Aundit Fees 375,000 750,000
Non- Audit 38,500 75,000

A -
Approved by the Board of Directors on 2 d. UC L. qu ...... and signed on its behalf by:-

T TR

..............................

DIRECTOR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

The State Investment Corporation Limited (the ~C ompany or *SIC") has always been commitied to promote
high standards of Corporate Govemance. The Company is a Public Interest Entity, as defined by law and the
Board strives to promote ransparency within the Group and comply with all the principles and guidelines set
out in the National Code of Corporate Govemance for Mauritius (2016) {ithe "Code™)

This report outlines the Company’s corporate govemance processes and provides explanations for any
deviation.

PRINCIPLE 1 - GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

“All organisations should be headed by an effective Board. Responsibilities and accountabilities within the
organisation should be clearly idenrified.”

The directors of the Company are skilled. knowledgeable and experienced profzssionals. The Board takes its
ficuciary responsibilities very carsfully. Each director is appointed with the understanding of the amount of
time and care that they will need to devote to the Board and 1o the organisation for it to prosper. The Board has

approved the key guiding documents and policies. The following documents are available on the Company’s
websita:-

0 Memorandum and Articles of Association;

° Board Charter;

° Organisation Chart;

o Job Description of Senior Governance Position; and

o Commuities Charters.

Kev Governance Responsibilities

The Board ensures that the key governance positions within the organisaiion are matched with the comresponding
accountabilities.

Kev Governance Positions

There 1s a clear division of responsibilities between running the Board and the business of the Group. The role
of the Chairman is separate from that of the Managing Director.

Chairman of the Beard

The Chairman is primarily responsible for the activities of the Board and its Committees. He is responsible for
the running of the Board and ensuring its effectiveness in all aspecis of its role, including regularity and
frequency of meetings. He acts as the spokesman for the Board and is the principal contact for the Managing
Director. The Chairman and the Managing Director of the Board meat regularly. The Chairman discusses and
sets the agenda with the Managing Director and the Company Secretary, and facilitates the effective contribution
of non-executive directors and encourages active participation during Board meetings. He ensures that Board
members. upon appointment, participate in an induction programme and that the development needs of directors
are identified and appropriate training is provided. The Chairman ensures effective implementation of Board
decisions. The Chairman ensures that directors (particularly non-executive directors) have sufficient time 1o
consider criticel issues and obtain answers to any questions or concerns they may have and are not faced with
unrealistic deadlines Tor decision making. The Cheirman maintains sufficient contact with the Sharsholders to
understand their issues and concerns. The Chairman also ensures that the views of Shareholders are
communicated to the Board as a whole so that all directors develop an understanding of their views.

Mr. Jairaj Sonoo C.S.K is the Chairmen of the Board.
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Chairman of the Board (cont’d)

The Managing Director

The Managing Director has the awthority and responsibility to manage the overall operations and resources of
the Group. He acts as the main point of contact between the Board and the Management. The Managing Director
ensures that a proper assessment of the risks under a variety of possible or likely scenarios is undertaken and
presented to the Board. The other responsibilities of the Managing Director include among others: to develop
and recommend to the Board a long-term vision and straiegy for the Group as well as the annual business plans
and budgets that support the Group’s strategy: to execute and implement the strategy of the Board: to monitor
the Group's performance and keep the Board appropriately informed; to foster a corporate culture that promotes
ethical practices, rejects comupt practices, offers equal opportunities, encouragss individual integrity and meets
social responsibility objectives and imperatives. The Managing Director serves as the chief spokesperson for
the Group on all operational and day-to-day marters. The Managing Director communicates effectively with
stakeholders and the public.

Mr Goolabehund Goburdhun is the Managing Director of the Company.

Chairversons of Sub-Committees

The Chairpersons of sub-commitiees work in close cooperat

1on and provide support and advice to the Chairman
of the Board. '

Chairmap of the Audit and Bisk Manacement Commiites

The Chairmen of the Audit and Risk Management Committee has the following responsibilities. amongst
others:-

e To provide nisk experiise o the Commitiee:

e To ensure the financial statements comply with the eppropriate accounting standards:
To guide and advise the Board on an appropriate risk management framework: and

To report the deliberations of the Audit and Risk Management Comminee to the Board.

a

]

Mr Cader Jaunbocus 1s the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

Chairman of the Corporate Governance Commitiee

The Chairman ot the Corporate Governance Comunitiee has the following responsibilidies, amongst others:-
a To provide expertise in the areas of corporate governance:

® To ensure that the Board is up to the standard with the Code;

e To ensure that an evaluation is carried out each year of the Board performance.; and

To report the deliberations of the Corporate Governance Comumittee to the Board.

-]

Mr. Mohummad Shamad Ayoob Saab is the Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee -

Chairman of the Investment Commitiee

The Chairman of the Investment Committee provides support and advice on the following:

s Investment strategies, policies and guidelines;
e New investment proposals; and
s Disposal of unquoted and/or strategic investments.

Mz, Anoop Kumar Nilamber is the Chairman of the Investmen: Committee.
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Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committes
The Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee assists the Board of Directors of the
Corporation in oversesing (i) the establishment of appropriate human resource strategies and policies within the

SIC, {i1) remuneration of Senior Management: and (ii1) appointment of Directors.

Mr. Premode Neerunjun is the Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Comnanv Secretarv

The Compeny Secretary provides guidance and support to the Board as a whole and directors individually with
detailed guidance as to how their responsibilities should be properly discharged in the best interests of the
Company. The main responsibilities of the Company Secretary include amongst others, to: prepare and circulate
agendas of Board, Board Committees and Sharcholders’ meetings and any supporting papers; take minutes of
meetings and circulate same to members; ensure that the procedure for the appointment of directors is properly
carried out; and ensure that the Corporation complies with fts Constitution and zll relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements and any procedures set by the Board. The Company Secretary ensures the presentation
of high-quality information to the Board, Board Committees and Shareholders and that the mestings and
resolutions of the Board and Shareholders are held and passed in accerdance with the Company’s Constitution
and the Companies Act. The Company Secretary assists in the proper induction of directors, including assessing
the specific needs of directors. The Company Secretary provides comprehensive practical support and guidance
to directors both as individuals and as a collective with particular emphasis on supporting the non-executive

directors.
Prime Parmers Lid, a wholly subsidiary, is the Company Secretary of SIC.

~

ther Kev Goverpance Positiong

Senior Management Team at SIC

Mrs Anista Ramphul Punchoo joined SIC in 1991 and has since been involved in monitoring and developing
the Investment Porifolio of the Carporation. She holds a Bachelors degree in Economics, Banking and Finance
from The University of Cardiff Wales UK. As a Senior Investment Executive of the SIC. she sits on vadous
invesies companies as board member. She has also been involved in SIC s start up projecis for the SME's.
Mirs Kavita humari Achameesing holds a Master in Investment Promotion & Economic Development,
Edmburgh Napier University, United Kingdom and a B.A (Hons) Financial Services. Edinburgh Napier
University, United Kingdom. She also holds a Diploma Management and Marketing, Institute of Commercial
Management, United Kingdom. She has been working in the Finance Depariment of SIC since 1989. She is
Senior Finance Executive at the SIC and has a wide experience in Corporaie Financial Reporting. and Treasury
Management. She has contributed to effective monitoring of financial operations and assets of SIC. She is also
a Non-Executive Director on the board of some investee companies of SIC.

Mr. Deevendra Cally is presently working as Senior Investment Fxecutive at State Investment Corporation
Ltd ("SICT). He has recently been deputed as Chief Finance Officer for the Casinos managed by SIC
Management Services Co. Lid. He is a Fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
UK and holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce and Master's degree in Business Administration with
specialisation In Finance. Prior to joining SIC. he worked with Kross Border Trust Services Lid. a sister
company of KPMG; as Senior Offshore and Fund Administrator. He has more than 13 years wide-ranging
experiences and acts as Board member on various companies where SIC is the investes company including

Princes Tunz (Mauritius) Lid. Cargo Handling Corporation Ltd and Alieo Refinerv Lid . He is also the
Chairperson of the Casinos of Mauritius Pension Fund.
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Senior Management Team at SIC (cont’dy

Mr. Chandrek Dussoye is Senior Investment Executive at SIC. He holds a Bsc Business Management Studies
at University of Mauritius and is a fully qualified ACCA. He is a professional reckoning more than 13 YEars in
the field of accounting and finance. He is currently assigned to the Porifolio and Investment Management
Depariment of SIC and is mostly involved in private equity investment and financing. He has been exposed to

live projects in a fast-paced investment environment and gathered experience across several economic sectors.
He is alsc a Director of some companies within the SIC Group.

PRINCIPLE 2 -~ THE STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD AND ITS BOARD COMMITTEES

“The Board sheuld contain independently minded directors. It should include an appropriaie combination
of executive directors, independent directors and hOh-zm{epem’m: non-executive directors ic prevent one
individual or & small group of individuals from dominaiing the Board's decision taking, The Board should
be of a size and level of diversity commensurate with the sophistication and scale of the organisasion.
Appropriate Board conuniitees may be set up to assist the Board in the effective performance of frs dutes.”

The Board is a unitary, currently consisting of eight (8) directors with:-
s 1 Executive Director.

e 4 Non-Executive Directors.

@ 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Constiration of the Company provides that the minimum number of directors shall be five (5} and the
maximum eight (8). The Directors are:-

! { Mr. Jairaj Sonoo C.5.K (As from May 18, 2018) Chairman .‘ Non—Executwe-and '
4 ‘ Independent
: 2 Mr. Premode Negrunjun : Member Non- Execurive
- Fx FahY
-7 Mr. Kritananda Naghee Reddy Member Non-Execuri e&a.nd
P i Independent
. 4 Mr. Anoop Nilamber : Member 7 Non- Executive
© 3 " Mr. Anandsing Acharuz (As from October 03, 2018) Member Non-Executive
T Appointment aiter vear ended December 31. 2018
. 6 . Mr. Goolabchund Goburdhun ( As from April 16,2019) Member IExecutive
! Mr. Cader Jaunbocus (As from May 13, 2019) f Member - Non- E};ecutl\-'e‘ and
: Independent
Pt / e T
| 8 ! E/{i}r} 91\)f£ol1ummad Shamad Ayoob Saab {As from June 04, Member Non- Executive

- Officers who served during the vear 2018 and ceased to be directors during the year or

subsequently
1 M Ayub Hussein Nakhuda, C. K (UptoMay 18,2018)  Chairman Non-Execuiive and
_ Independent
= . -
"~ | Mrs. Banoomatee Veerasamy (Up to March 29, 2018) Actmg. Managing Executive
Director
3 | Mr. Visvanaden Soondram (Up to October 05, 2018) Member Non- Execurive
4 1 Mr. Vidianand-Luchmeepersad (Up tc May 29, 2019) Member Non- Executive
3 | Mr. Manickchand Beejan (From April 01,2018 up to Managing Executive
February 28, 2019) Director Recut
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PRINCIPLE 2 - THE STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD AND ITS BOARD CONMMITTEES (CONT'D) -

The Board consists of an appropriate mix of skills and experience to provide leadershiyp, reflect integrity
and make judgement for managing the affairs of the Company. Discussions will be pursued with the
main Shareholder regarding the requirement for gender representation in the Board membership.

Only Board Members attend Board Meetings. Management and other subject matter experts attend the meeting
or part thereof on invitation of the Chairman. The use of Alternate Director is discouraged. A clear division of

responsibilities at Board level ensures that no Director has unfettered powers in decision making.

All Directors are resident in Mauritius.

The Chairman of the Board and the Chainmnan of each of the Board Committes are all carefully selecied of
their relevant knowledge and experience in these key governance rolas.

Eole of Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive and Independent Directors play a vital role in providing independen: judgemen: in el
circumstances. The Non-Executive Directors are drawn from a diversity of business and other backgrounds so
as to bring a broad range of views and experience t¢ Board deliberations.

Executive Directors

There is currently one Executive Director.

The Board s ot the view that the appointment of a second executive director on the Board, as required by the

Code, is not necessary. The Senior Executives of the Company are invited 1o attend board meertings as and when
required.

With the exception of the Managing Director, all directors have 2 term of office of one year. Members of the
Board are elected at the ennval maeting of shareholders. The term of the service contract of the Managing
Director is for a period of three years. effective April 16, 2019.

Birector’s Independence Review

The Board is detenmined to ensure on an annual basis and as when the circumstances require, whether or not

a director is independent. The Board has considered the following directors as Independent directors:-
Mr. Jaira) Sonoo C.S.K

Mr. Kiitananda Naghee Reddy
Mr., Cader Jaunbocus

AR AR Y

The Board recognizes that over time independent directors develop significant insights in the Company's
business and operations and can contribute objectively to the Board as a whole. In circumstances wheare a
director has served as an Independent Director for over nine vears. the Board will do a rigorous review of
their continuing contribution and independence.

Powers of the Board

The key roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors are set in the Board Charter. The Board is aware
of its responsibility to ensure that the Company adheres to all relevant legislations such as the Mauritius

Companies Act 2001, The Board also follows the principle of good corporate sovernance as recommended
in the Code,
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Board Meetings

The Board met sixteen (16) times during the financial year ended December 31, 2018, A calendar of masatings
is communicaied to the Board well in advance. Board Papers are circulated to the Directors well ahead of the
meetings to facilitate meaningful and informed decisions at the meetings. Meetings are conducted by means
of audio conference when perscnal attendance is not possible.

The Company provides the Directors appropriate tools to accede to the Board Portal which facilitates secure
digital communication of Board Papers.

Board Aftendance

The following table depicts the attendance at Board/Board Comumitiees meetings during the vear under
review, -

1 1T - I T ) T Ndn—Eiecxiti'\:‘é and
; A+ 3 : 7 3
| Mr. Jairaj Sonoo C.8.K (As from May 18, 2018) Independen:
2| Mr. Premode Neerunjun Non- Executive 13/16
"7 | Mr. Kritananda Naghee Reddy Non-Executive and &/16
; - Independent
. 4" Mr. Anoop Nilamber Nop- Executive 10716
-5 Mr. Anandsing Acharuz (As from October 03, 2018) © Non- Executive 44
. Appoinimert after vear ended December 31. 2018
+ 6 Mr, Goolabchund Goburdhun (As from April 16, 2019) Exzcutive -
7 - ! Non- Executive and - -
' Mr. Cade As from May 13,2 :
My, Cader Jaunbocus (As from May 13, 2019) Independen:

-8 . Mr. Mohummad Shamad Ayoob Saab (As from June 04, 2019} Non- Executive -
. Oificers who served curing the year 2018 and ceased to be directors during the year or
. subsequently

it

M. Ayub Hussein Nakhuda. C.8 X (Up 1o May 18, 2018) e d;ZZfdl;ztand "
2 | Mrs. Banoomatee Veerasamy (Up to March 29, 3018) Executive 0/1
3 | Mr. Visvanaden Soondram (Up to October 03, 2018) Non- Executive §/12
41 Mr. Vidianand Luchmeepersed (Up to May 29, 2019} Non- Executive 11716
5 | Mr. Manickchand Begjan (As from April 01, 2018 Up to February o 13/13
28, 2019) Executive

Board Commitiees

The Board has carefully considered the work that it needs 1o cary out to be effective and in order to perform
against strategy. To this end, the following commitiees have been set up as follows:-

{i) Investment Commities;

(i1) Audit and Risk Management Conumittes

{111) Corporate Governance Committes; and

(1v) Remuneration and Nomination Commitiee.

The objectives of these Committees are (1) to bring focus and appropriate expertise and specialization to the
consideration of specific Board issuss; (i1} to enhance Board efficiency and effectiveness: (iii) to enable kev
issues to be studied in depth; and (iv) io make recommaendations o the Board.
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Board Committees (cont’d)

The Board reviews each Committee’s Charter which sets out the roles, responsibilities and scope of authority
of the Committee. The Board ensures that the Company are being managed in line with the Company’s
objectives through deliberations and reporting of its various Committees.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is governed by a Charter in line with the provisions of the Code.
The Charter of the Committee was approved by the Board and is available on the website of the Company.

The Board considers that the members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee are appropriately
qualified to discharge their responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has the explicit authority to investigate any matter within its terms
of reference. In addition, the Audit and Risk Management Commitiee has full access to and co-operation of
Management as well as full discretion to invite any Director to attend its meetings.

The duties of the Audit and Risk Management Committee include amongst others:-

» FExamining and reviewing the quality and integrity of the financial statements of the Company including its
anrual report;

Compliance with International Financial Reporting standards and legal requirements;

Keeping review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s systems of intemnal control, including
internal financial control and business risk management and maintaining effective internal control systems;
Reviewing the annual compliance work plan and other reports from the Compliance function;

Ensuring the Internal Auditor has direct access to the Board Chairperson and to the Committee Chairperson;
Consider and make recommendations to the Board, to be put to shareholders for approval at the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, in relation to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the Company’s
External Auditor;

» Making recommendations to the Board as it deems appropriate, on any area within its remit where action
or improvement is needed. '

A2 4

YV VY

In performing its function, the Audit and Risk Management Committee meets with the internal and external
auditors. Where necessary, the Audit and Risk Management Committee also meets separately with the internal
and external auditors whereby any issues may be raised directly to the Audit & Risk Management Committee,

without the presence of Management. The internal and external auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit
and Risk Management Committee.

The Comumittee met thrice during the vear.

Members and Attendance

Mr. V. Soondram Chairma 3/3
Mr. A. Nilamber Member 213
Mr. K. Naghee Reddy Member 2/3
Mr. V. Lutchmeepersad Member 2{3
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* The Audit and Risk Management Committee was reconstituted as follows as from June 05, 2019:-

Mr. C. Jaunbocus Chairman
Mr. A. S. Ayoob Saab Member
Mr. A. Acharuz Member

Cornorate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee is governed by a Charter in line with the provisions of the Code. The
Charter of the Committee was approved by the Board and is available on the website of the Company.

The Corporate Governance Committee is a useful mechanism for making recommendations to the Board on

various corporate governance issues so that the Board remains effective and complies with good governance
principles.

The duties of the Corporate Governance Commitiee include the following:-

»  Oversee the implementation of the corporate governance framework;

»  Periodically review and evaluate the effectiveness of the Company’s Code of Conduct and Ethics;

»  Review the position descriptions of the Chairperson, and Board Comunittee chairs and recommend any
amendment to the Board; and

»  Review annually the size and composition of the board as a whole.

The Committee met twice during the year.

Members and Attendance

Mr. P. Neerunjun Chairman 272
Mr. J. Sonoo C.S.K Member 272
Mr. V. Scondram Member 272
Mr. K. Naghee Reddy Member 272
Mr. A, Nilamber Member 02

The Carporate Governance Comumittee was reconstituted as follows as from June 05, 2019:-

Mr. M. 8. Ayoob Saab Chairman
Mr. J. Sonoo Member
M. K. Naghee Reddy Member
Mr. P. Neerunjun Member
Mr. A. Acharuz Member
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Investment Committee

The Investment Committee is governed by a Charter in line with the provisions of the Code. The Charter of the
Investment Commitiee was approved by the Board and is available on the website of the Company.

The main function of the Investment Committee is 1o advise the Board on asset allocation, investment policies,

processes, strategies and on optimal risk/return level. The Committee reviewed the evolving financial market
conditions and deliberated on investment opportunities.

The Investment Committee met five times during the year.

Members and Attendance

Mr. A. Nilamber Chairman 5/5
Mr. K. Naghee Reddy Member 215
Mr. V. Soendram Member 2/5
Mr. M. Begjan Member 4/4

The Investment Committee was reconstituted as follows as from June 05, 2019:-

Mr. A. Nilamber

Chairman
Mr. G. Goburdhun Member
Mr. C. Jaunbocus Member
Mr. A. Acharuz Member

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is governed by a Charter in line with the provisions of the Code.

The Charter of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee was approved by the Board and is available on
the website of the Company.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is a useful mechanism for making recommendations to the
Board on various issues so that the Board remains effective and complies with good governance principles.

The duties of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee include the followings:-
» Recommend and monitor the level and structure of remuneration for senior management;

»  Be responsible for identifying and nominating for the approval of the Board, candidates to fill board
vacancies as and when they rise;

» Ensure that on appointment to the Board, non-executive directors receive 2 formal letter of
appointment;and

» Review the results of the Board performance evaluation process that relate to the composition of the Board.

The Committee twice during the year.
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Members and Attendance

Mr.

. Neerunj Chairman 212
Mr.N. Nilamber Member /2
Mr. K.. Naghee Reddy Member 172
Mr. V. Luchmeepersad Member i72
Mr. M. Begjan Member 172

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee was reconstituted as follows as from June 05, 201%9:-

Mr. P. Neerunjun Chairman
Mr. K. Naghee Reddy Member
Mr. A. Nilamber Member
Mr. G. Goburdhun Member

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

Mpr. Jairaj Sonoo, C.5.XK

Mr. Sonoo is the Chairman of the Company. He has extensive experience in banking both on the local and intemal level
and spent nearly 38 years at SBM in various positions. He served as the Chief Executive Officer at SBM Bank
(Mauritius) Ltd from September 2012 to August 2016 and Acting Group Chief Executive at SBM Holdings Lid from

November 2014 to September 2015. He occupied the post of the Chief Executive Overseas Expansion of SBM
Holdings Ltd from August 2016 to September 2017.

During his tenure of office at SBM Group, he was responsible for overseeing the development and execution of the

Bank’s international strategy through both organic growth and M&A. He also led the acquisition of a Kenyan Bank
which marked the milestone for the Group’s entry into East Africa.

M. Sonoo holds a Masterss in Business Administration (MBA) from University of Surrey, UK. He is currently the

Chairman of The State Investment Corparation Limited and holds directorship on various invested companies of the
SIC.

Mr. Goolabchund Goburdhun

Mr. Goburdhun is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and holds a M.S.c in Finance
from University of Mauritius. He has extensive experience in the field of accounting and finance. He is
registered with the Mauritius Institute of Professional Accountants (MIPA) as ‘Professional Accountant.’

Mr G. Goburdhun is currently the Managing Director of The State Investment Corporation Limited (SIC) and
holds directorship on various SIC Investee Companies, including Air Mauritius Ltd, Lottotech Ltd and Casino
Companies. In the past, he was in public practice as a Chartered Certified Accountant providing services relating
to Accoumting, Auditing, Management, Tax Consultancy and Corporate Secretarial Services. He also held
Chairmanship on various Government-related companies/institutions such as MauBank Holdings Ltd, MPCB

(now MauBank Ltd), National Pensions Board and Responsible Gambling and Capacity Building of the
Gambling Regulatory Authority.
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE (CONT’D)

Mr. Premode Neerunjun

Mr Neerunjun holds the post of -Permanent Secretary at the Prime Minister’s Office and has over thirty years
of experience in the public sector. In addition, he has also been called upon to serve as Board Director in
statutory bodies on a part time basis. He holds a Graduate Diploma in Business from Curtin University (Western
Australia) and a BSc in Economics & Management from University of London. He also holds a Masters Degree
in Public Policy and Administration from the University of Mauritius.

Mr. Kritananda Naghee Reddy

Mr Reddy lef the Ministry of Finance (as it was known then) as Principal Accountant to join the Attorney
General’s Office in 2002 as State Counsel after graduating in Law. Presently Acting Principal State Counsel,

he represents the State in litigation on civil matter and also advises Ministries and Government Departments.
He is also holder of an MBA and an LLM.

Mr. Anoop Kumar Nilamber

Mr. Nilamber is currently the group Chief Executive Officer for the Airports of Mauritius (AML Group). Prior
to occupying this post, Mr. Nilamber was Economic Advisor at the Ministry of Finance and Economic
Development. He was a Corporate Finance Banker at HSBC in France and at the Mauritius Commercial Bank..

In Paris, Mr. Nilamber was also a Part-time Lecturer in Finance at Universite Pantheon Assas (Paris II) where
he graduated in Banking and Finance.

My, Cader Jaunbocus

Mr.-Jaunbocus is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and holds a Master in Business
Administration from University of Birmingham. He has extensive experience in the field of Finance, with lead
experience in Personal Financial Planning, Investments, [nsurance, Management, Analysis and Reporting. He
is registered with the UK Chartered Insurance Institute (CII) as a *Chartered Insurer’.

M. Jaunbocus is currently the Managing Director of the Tailored Financial Solutions Ltd a company providing
services in the field of Accountancy, Tax and Advisory. Mr. Jaunbocus possess strong entrepreneurial skill as
well as good business acumen, valued communicator, dedicated to meeting goals and exceedings expectations.

Myr. Anandsing Acharuz

Mr. Acharuz is currently a Direcior (Economic & Finance) at the Ministry of Finance and Economic
Development. His responsibilities inciude the preparation of the macro-fiscal framework, the budget estimates

and the debt management strategy. He is also responsible for consclidating the public financial management
Syster.

In view of his responsibilities, Mr. Acharuz is activelt working with regional and international organisations
such as the Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative and AFRITAC South, whereby he has been sharing
his experience and knowledge in the fields of public financial management and budgeting. Mr. Acharuz has
served on different boards of public bodies, including the State Trading Corporation Limited, the Civil Service

Family Protection Scheme Board, the Mauritius Post & Co-operative Bank Ltd, the Government Lotieries ad
the Mauritius Ex-SERVICES Trust Fund Board.

Mr. Acharuz holds an MSc¢ in Financial Economics from the University of London.



THE STATE INVESTMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

2(k)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE (CONT’D)

My, Mohummad Shamad Ayoob Saab

Mr. Ayoob Saab, independent director, helds a Diploma in Public Administration with specialization in Public
Management and a Masters in Business Administratior. He joined the Public service in 1984 and has since
then climbed up the ladder to the post of Permanent Secretary. Has served in various ministries and is at present
posted to the Ministry of Finance and Economic Development.

Mr. Ayoob Saab has served several board namely NPF, NHDC, NPFL, FSC and NCCG. He 1s presently the
Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee of the SIC.

e Directorship within the Group as at the date of signature of the financial statements:-
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» Directorship within the Group as at the date of signature of the financial statements:- (cont’ d)
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31 | Air Mauritius Holdings \

32 | Adrports of Mauritius Ltd A

33 | Pointe Coton Ltd v

34 | SICOM N

35 | Ebene CaiPark y

36 | Lotiotech +

Mauritins Estate Development

37 | Corporation \/

38 | Viia Rice Lid N

39 | Mauritius Duty Free Paradise Co Lid +

49 | ISPC + | |

o Directorship on listed comnpanies

Mr. Goolabehund Goburdhun is a Director of the following listed companies:-
{1} Loitotech Lid
(1) A Mauritius Lid.

The other Board Members of SIC are not Directors of Listed Comnpanies.

PRINCIPLE 3 - DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT PROCEDURES

“There should be a formal, rigerous and transparent process jor the appoiniment, election, induction and
re-election of Directors. The search for Board candidates should be conducred, and appointments made, on
merit, against objective criteria (o include skills, knowledge, experience, and independence and with due
regard io the benefits of diversity on the Board, including gender). The Board should ensure that a formal,

rigorous and iransparent procedure be in place for planning the succession of ail key officeholders.”

Appointment of Direciors

The Board carefully considers the needs of the Company in appointing Board Members. The following factors
are considered.:-

o Skills, knowledge and expertise required on the Board;

o  Skills, knowledge and expertise of the proposed Direcior;

+  Previous experience as a Director;

¢ Specific roles required on the Board such as Chajrmaz of & Committes:
¢ Balance required on the Board such as gender and age;

» Independence where required;

Amount of time the proposed director is abie to devote to the business of the Board: and
s  Conflicts of inmerests.
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Anpointment of Directors {cont’d)

As per the newly adopted Charter of Remuneration and Nomination Committee, the role of the said Comumitiee
in respect of nomination of Directors include the following:-

(i) To keep under review the leadership needs of the Company, both executive and non-executive, with a view
to ensuring the continued ability of the Company to compete effectively in the marketplace; and

(ii) To identify and nominate for the approval of the Board, candidates to fill board vacancies as and when they
arise.

The proposed appointee is required to disclose any other business interests that may result in a conflict of interest
and to report any future business interests that could result in a conflict of interest.

The Board considers its succession very carefully and assumes responsibility for succession planning. The
Remuneration and Nomination Committee is responsible to give consideration to succession planning for
directors and other semior executives in the course of its work, taking into account the challenges and
opportunities facing the Company, and the skills and expertise needed on the Board in the future.

Professional Development

The Board has reviewed the professiona! development and on-going education of Directors. During the Board

evaluation exercise, the Board Members are invited to indicate any training development programme they
require.

Induction

On appointment to the Board, all directors receive a formal induction program designed to provide them with
sufficient knowledge and understanding of the nature of business, gpportunity and challenges, to enable them
to effectively contribute to strategic discussions and oversight of the Company. The topics covered by the
induction include the Board Charter, which clearly outlines their duties and obligations, the new Code for
Corporate Governance in Mauritius, the Risk Management framework and introduction to key stakeholders.
They are also provided with the Company’s relevant constitutive documents.

Flection and Re-election of Directors

Each director is elected by a separate resolution at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders until the next Annual
Meeting.

PRINCIPLE 4 - DIRECTOR DUTIES, REMUNERATION AND PERFORMANCE

“Directors should be aware of their legal duties. Directors should observe and foster high ethical standards
and a strong ethical culture in their organisation. Each director must be able to allocate sufficient time to
discharge his or her duties effectively. Conflicts of intevest should be disclosed and managed. The Board is
responsible for the governance of the organisation’s information, information technology and information
security. The Board, committees and individual directors should be supplied with information in a timely
manner and in an appropriate form and quality to perform to required standards. The Board, commiltees
and individual directors should have their performance evaluated and be held accountable to appropriate

stakeholders. The Board should be transparent, fair and consistent in determining the remuneration policy
for directors and senior executives.”
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T.ecal Duties

All Directors are fully aware of their fiduciary duties.

Conflict of Interest

Board Members have a fiduciary duty to conduct themselves without conflict of the interests of the Company.
In their capacity as Board Members, they must subordinate personal individual business, third-party and other
interests to the welfare and best interests of the Company.

A conflict of interest occurs when a present transaction or relationship might conflict with a Board Member’s
obligations owed to the Company and the Board Member’s personal, business or other interests.

The Company ensures that directors declare any interest and report {o the Chainman and Company Secretary
any related party transactions. A register of conflicts of interests is kept by the Company Secretary.

Information, IT and Information Security Governance

The Board of Directors ensures that appropriate resources are allocated for the implementation of an
information and IT security framework. SIC has in place an Information Security policy and an IT Risk policy,
which are regularly reviewed. It has implemented security policies to ensure that data is safeguarded both
within its premises as well as those hosted on the server including access rights granted only to authorised
personnel, password expiry and complexity policy implemented and backup of digital information. Testing
of daily backup of the server are also conducted on a regular basis by the IT department. SIC has also in place
a Disaster Recovery Plan which ensures that in the event of a major disaster that causes the site to be
unavailable, systems and business operations will be restored at a backup site within two working days.

Board Information

The Chairperson is responsible for ensuring that the directors receive accurate, timely and clear information.
The Company Secretary’s responsibilities include ensuring good information flows within the Board and its
committees and between senior management and non-executive directors. Management has an obligation to
provide accurate, timely and clear information. Directors seek clarification or amplification where necessary.

The Board ensure that directors have access to independent professional advice at the company’s expense in
cases where the directors judge it necessary for discharging their responstbilities as directors.

All directors keep information relating to the Company, gathered in their capacity as directors, strictly
confidential and private and do not divuige them to anyone without the authority of the Board.

The Company Secretary should arrange appropriate Directors and Officers Insurance for all Board members,
the Company Secretary and other appropriate staff

Directors & Officers Liabilitv Insurance

The Company has contracted with SICOM Directors & Officers Liability Insurance policy in respect of legal

action or liability that can arise against its Directors and officers. The cover does not provide insurance against
fraudulent, malicious or willful acts or omissions.
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Board Evaluation

The Company has established a system of Board Appraisal to assess the effectiveness/ performance of the
Board and sub-committees. The Directors are required to fill in an Evaluation Questionnaire, focusing on the
following major governance issues relevant to the Board: -

Objectives and Strategy;
Performance Measurement;
Relationships with key stakeholders;
Propriety, Fraud and Other Leakage;
Project Management;

Risk Management;

Oversight of Management;

The Audit Committee, Internal Audit and Corporate Reporting;
Composition of the Board;

Conduct of Board Meetings;

The Boardroom;

VVVVVYVVVYYVYY

The results are analysed and discussed by the Corporate Governance Committee and action considered for
implementation. The Board considers that the current evaluation process is sufficient.

No independence Board evaluator was appoiated.

Statement of Remuneration Philosophy

The directors are remunerated for their knowledge, experience and insight. The remuneration policy is o

reward the collective contribution of directors towards achievement of the Company’s objectives. The
directors’ remuneration in similar companies is also used as a guide.

The total fees earned by directors during the year under review, are as follows:-

L | Mr. Tairaj Sonoo C.S.K (As from May 18, 2018) aigﬁﬂ%’;gﬁ:; Rs857,272.73
2 | Mr. Premode Neerunjun Non- Executive Rs300,000.00
3 Mr. Kritananda Naghee Reddy Non-Executive Rs300,000.00
and Independent

4 Mr. Anoop Nilamber Non- Executive Rs300,000.00
5 Mr. Anandsing Acharuz (As from October 03, 2018) Non-Executive Rs71,590.91
& 2/([;1 Egyub Hussein Nakhuda, C.S.K (Up to May 18, aﬁgr&%};;izz‘;t Rs533,181.82
7 Mrs. Banoomatee Veerasamy (Up to March 29, 2018) Executive Rs1,080,544.27
8 Mr. Vigvanaden Scondram {Up to October 03, 2018) Non- Executive Rs229,545.46
9 Mr. Vidianand Luchmeepersad (Up to May 29, 2019) Non- Executive Rs300,000.00
10 | Mr. Manickchand Beejan (Up to February 28, 2019) Executive Rs3,116,010.00

The Directors have not received remuneration in the form of share options or bonuses associated with the

Company’s performance.
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PRINCIPLE 5 - RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

“The Board should be responsible for risk governance and should ensure that the orgainsation develops and

executes a comprehensive and robust system of risk management. The Board should ensure the maintenance
of a sound internal control systent.”

(a) Responsibility and application

The Board is responsible for risk management and for framing procedures for risk management. The Board
is responsible for definition of the overall strategy for risk tolerance. Management and the assurance process
on risk management are delegated to the Audit & Risk Comumittee. The Committee is responsible for the

design and implementation of risk management processes while the day-to-day management of risk is
performed by Management.

The Corporation’s policy on risk management encompasses all significant business risks, including
physical, operational, human resources, technological, business continuity, financial, compliance and
reputational, which could influence the achievement of the Corporation’s objectives.

The risk management mechanisms in place include:-

o asystem for ongoing identification and assessment of risk and definition of acceptable and non-
acceptable levels of risk;

o development of strategies in respect of risk and definition of acceptable and non-acceptable levels of
risk;

e communication of risk management policies to all levels of the organisation, as appropriate, and
methods to ensure commitmeni, both by managers and by other employees, to the process;

o processes to reduce or mitigate identified risks and contain them within the levels of tolerance defined
by the Board and Management; and

o Structures and processes for identification of risks and risk management.

(b) Structures and processes for identification of risks and risk management

(¢}

There was clear accountability for risk management. Managers were required to document how these risks
would be managed and what mitigating activities have been put in place in respect of each significant risk.

Inteoration of internal conirol and risk management

The effectiveness of internal control systems was reviewed by the Audit & Risk Management Commuttee.
It covered all internal control systems, including financial, operational, compliance and risk management.

The Corporation has outsourced the internal audit function to Moore Stephens (Mtius), as from January
2016. The assignment provides for the examination and evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Corporation’s governance and of the risk management process, as well as assessment of the adequacy of
the existing internal control system. The key deliverables by Moore Stephens are the provision of detailed
monthly internal reports and value added advice to Management on risks management.

(d) Assurance on the effectiveness of the risk management process

Regular management reporting, which provides a balanced assessment of key risks and conirols, was an
important component of Board assurance. The finance department provided confirmation that financial and
accounting control frameworks have operated satisfactorily. The Board also received assurance from the
Audit & Risk Management Committee which, in part, derived its information from internal and external
audit reports on risk and internal control throughout the Corporation.
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(e) Management of key risks

Risks within the Corporation were identified under the following headings:

o Operational risk: Operational risk is defined as risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems, or from external events.

e Human resource risks: Losses arising from acts inconsistent with employment, health and safety laws,
personal injury claims, etc.

e Compliance risks: Dishonest or fraudulent acts intended to defraud or misappropriate property, or
circurnvent regulations, law and policies and involve at least one internal party and a third party.
o Physical risks: Losses due to fire, cyclones, riots, etc.

e Technology risks: Include hardware and software failures, system development and infrastructure
issues,

e Business continuity risks: Losses from failed transaction processing and process management.

Financial Risk Factors

Please refer to note 3 of the Notes to the Financial Statements on pages 19-31.

Solvency Risk
Solvency risk is minimal since the Company has no debt.

Frameworks and processes for the sound management of risk and Internal Controls

An independent internal auditor has been appointed to review the effectiveness of the Company’s systems of
internal control, including internal financial control and business risk management and maintaining effective

internal control systems. This ensures that appropriate frameworks and effective processes are in place for a
sound management of risk.

Management is responsible for the implementation of internal control and risk management systems under the
supervision of the Audit & Risk Management Committee which ensure that proper accounting records are
maintained and that the strategies and policies adopted by the Board are being implemented.

The internal auditor covers key areas of activities. Any deviation in policies and non-performance of internal
control ar¢ duly reported and discussed at large at Management and Audit & Risk Management Cormittee

levels. Corrective actions are promptly taken, and regular follow ups are done. This enables the Board to derive
assurance that the internal control systems are effective.

There has been no identification of any significant areas which was not covered by the Internal Auditors during

the year. Based on the intemal audit report, no major risk or deficiency has been found in the Company’s system
of internal controls.

Whistle-blowing rules and procedures

For any suspicious or illegal transactions or behaviour, officers and directors are encouraged to Jodge reports

promptly to the Money Laundering officer as per the Financial Intelligence and Anti Money Laundering Act
2002 and Prevention of Corruption Act 2002.
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PRINCIPLE 6: REPORTING WITHINTEGRITY

“I'he Board should present a fair, balanced and understandable assessment of the orcanfsarion 's financial,
environmental, soctal and governance position, performance and oudook in its annual report™

The Annual Report is published in full on the Company’s website.

The Annunal Report comprise several kev elements:
= Performance review

= [eonomic and market review

*  Risks

= KPIs., performance and outlook

#  Corporate social responsibility aud donations

= Environmental policy

Corporate social responsibilitv and donations

The Company had paid directly its coatribution to the Mauritius Revenue Authority. There following
donations were made during the year:-

Donations Amount
Rs.
1 | T-Shirts for Maha Shivratee i 94 873
2 Souh Indian Culinary Contest 25.000
| Tota 119,375

Environmental Policy

Due to the nature of its activities, the Company’s operation has no major impact oz environment.

Safetv and Health Issues

The Corporation compliss with the Occupational Safety and Healh Act 2003 and other legisiative and
regulatory frameworks. With a view to promote health and safety knowledge sharing in order to make the
Corporation & workplace safer and healthier. several trainings have been delivered to officers of the Corporation.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for:

» Adequate accounting records and for maintenance of effective internal conirol systems;

e Preparation of financial statements which fairly present the state of affairs of the Company at end of

the financial year and the cash flows for that period, and which comply with [nternational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS);

o Using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates;

e Ensuring that adequate accounting records and an effective system of internal conirols and risk
management have been maintained;

e Ensuring that appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and
gstimates have been used consistently;

e Ensuring that the International Financial Reporting Standards have been adhered to. Any departure has
been disclosed, explained and quantified in the financial statements; and

o Ensuring that the Code of Corporate Governance has been adhered to in all material aspects. Reasons for
non-compliance have been provided, where appropriate.

The External Auditors are responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements are fairly presented.

PRINCIPLE 7 — AUDIT

“Organisations should consider having an ¢ffective and independent internal audit function that has the
respect, confidence and co-operation of both the Board and the management. The Board should establish

formal and transparent arrangements to appoint and maintain an appropriate relationship with the
organisation’s auditors”

Internal Audit

The role of Internal Audit is to provide independent and objective assurance to management and the Board of
Directors through the Aundit Committee. By following a systematic and disciplined approach, Internal Audit

helps to accomplish the Company’s objectives by evaluating and recommending improvements to operations,
internal controls, risk management systems, and governance process.

During the year, the internal audit function was outsourced to Moore Stephens. The latter is a professional firm
and its internal audit department is adequately staffed with qualified auditors and certified internal auditors. The

internal audit is performed on a quarterly basis and the findings are submitted to the Audit and Risk Management
Committee.

The intemnal auditor reports directly to the Audit & Risk Committee and has unrestricted access to review ail
activities and transactions undertaken within the Company and to appraise and report thereon. There was no

restriction placed over the right of access by intemal audit o the records, management or employees of the
organisation.

External Audit

The Company has appointed BDO as External Auditors for the financial year ended December 31, 2018
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Meeting with Andit & Risk Committee

The External Auditors met with the Chairman of the Audit & Risk Committee at least twice during the year,
without the presence of Management, during which meeting the financial statements of the Company, timeline
of the audit, the audit approach, the accounting principles and critical policies adopted are discussed.

Going forward, meetings of the Committee will be held at least four times a year at appropriate intervals in the
financial reporting and audit cycle and otherwise as required.

Evaluation of the Audifors

The Audit & Risk Committee evaluates the external auditor in fulfilling their duty annually, to make an informed
recommendation to the Board for the reappointment of the auditor. The Audit & Risk Committee assesses the
qualifications and performance of the auditor; the quality of the auditor’s communications with the Audit &
Risk Committee and the anditor’s independence, objectivity and professional scepticism.

information on non-audit services

The Company has appointed BDO for tax compliance services. The fees charged for this service is Rs.38,500
for the year ended December 31, 2018, I

The audit and tax department of BDO are distinct. Hence, the Manager and signing partner of each department
are separate.

PRINCIPLE 8- RELATIONS WiTH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER KEY STAKEHOLDERS

“The Board should be responsible for ensuring that an appropriate dialogue takes place among the
organisation, its shareholders and other key stakeholders. The Board should vespect the interests of its
shareholders and other key stakeholders within the context of its fundamental purpose”

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The holding structure of The State Investment Corporation Limited as at December 31, 2018 was as follows:-

Government of Development Bank,
Mauritius of Mauritias Ltd

(99.99%) (0.01%)

The State Investment Corporation Limited

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Corporation has no formal policy on dividend. The Corporation has last declared dividend during the year
ended June 30, 2008.
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RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDER

The Board ensures that the Notice of Meeting along with the proxy forms is sent to the shareholders at least 14

days before the mesting in accordance with the Campanies Act. The last Annual Mesting was held on June 27,
2019,

The Company ensures ihat there is regular contact and dialogue with the shareholders to keep them informed
on material events arfecting the Company. The Chairman, through the assistance of the Company Secretary, is
available to answer any query from the shareholder.

COMPANY KEY STAKEHOILDERS

Regulators

Relationships with the regulators, mainly the Financial Services Commission, the Registrar of Companies and
the Mauritius Revenue Authority are considered as critical for good rumming of the Company. The Company
meintains relationship with its regulators through writien communicarions, filing of retwms and financial
reports, participation in forums, conferences and workshops as well as compliance with relevant legislation.

These relationships are viewed as strategic partnerships to ensure that the Company upholds and maintains
best practices with full transparency.

CALENDAR OF IMPORTANT EVENTS

The following is a schedule of imporiant evenis:

Jupe Arpnual General Meeting
June Approval of Accounts
December End of Financial Year
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Statement of Compliance
(Section 75 (3) of the Financial Reporting Act)

Name of PIE: The State Investment Corporation Limited
Reporting period: December 31, 2018

We, the Directors of The State Investment Corporation Limited, (the “Company or SIC”} confirm to the best of
our knowledge that the Company has complied with all its obligations and requirements under the Code of
Corporate Governance except for the following sections: -

Reasons for non-compliance with the sections of the Code:

Princinle 2: Structure of the Board and its board commitiees

Board Composition:- Appointment of at least two Executive Directors

There is currently one Executive Director. The Board is of the view that the appointment of a second executive

director on the Board, as required by the Code, is not necessary. The Senior Executives of the Company are
invited to attend board meetings as and when required.

Principle 2: Structure of the Board and its board committees

Board Diversity

Discussions will also be pursued with the main Shareholder regarding the requirement for gender
representation in the Board membership.

.........................

DIRECTOR
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CERTIFICATE FROM THE COMPANY SECRETARY FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2018

We hereby certify that to the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company has filed with the Registrar of
Companies all such returns as are required by the Company under Section 166 (d} of the Companies Act
2001 during the financial year ended December 31, 2018,
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THE STATE INVESTMENT CORPORATIONLTD

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Shareholders of The State Investment Corporation Ltd

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statemenis of The State Investment Corporation Ltd (the Company), on pages
5 to 57 which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows

for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 5 to 57 give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at December 31, 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then

ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Companies Act
2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibiiities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Mauritius,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the TESBA

Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the infonmation
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

Tn connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Corporate Governance Report

Our responsibility under the Financial Reporting Act is to report on the compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance disclosed in the annual report and assess the explanations given for non-compliance
with any requirement of the Code. From our assessment of the disclosures made on corporate governance in

the anmual report, the public interest entity has, pursuant to section 75 of the Financial Reporting Act,
complied with the requirements of the Code.

BDO & Co, a firm of Chartered Accountants in Mauritius, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by
guarantee, and forms part of the international 8DO network of independent member firms.

BCO is the brand name for the BRO network and for each of the BDO Merber Firms.
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To the Shareholders of The State Investment Corporation Ltd

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements .

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2001, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the

preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
EITor.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whale are free
from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concemn. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 10 cease to continue as a going
concern.
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4b)
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONT'D)
To the Shareholders of The State Investment Corporation Lid
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont'd)
. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify duning our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Companies Act 2001

We have no relationship with, or interests in, the Company, other than in our capacity as auditors and
dealings in the ordinary course of business.

We have obtained all information and explanations we have required.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears from our
examination of those records.

Other Matter

This report is made solely to the members of The State Investment Corporation Ltd (the “Company™), as a
body, in accordance with Section 205 of the Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibiliiy to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit worls,

for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
PO (o

BDO & CO
Chartered Accountants

o
78 0CT 109 i@y&f’@ﬂ

Port Louis, Shabnam Peerbocus, FCA
Mauritius. ) Licensed by FRC )
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3
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - DECEMBER 31, 2018
As at
January [,
. Restated 2017
Notes 2018 2017 Restated
ASSETS Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 16,661 14.922 14.542
Investment property 6 610,000 619,000 19,500
Intangible assets 7 13,272 13.463 13,703
Investment in subsidiary companies 8 2,303,230 1,673,940 1,481,620
Investment in associates 9 1,093,299 1,620,463 639,127
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss 10 3,737,073 3,639,922 3,302,310
Non current receivables 11 - 6,511 8,390
Financial assets at amortised cost 13 5,974 - -
Employee benefit asset - 3,192
7,779,511 7,579,221 5,832,695
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 12 16,567 119,052 548,933
Financial assets at amortised cost 13 262,173 -
Current tax asset 19 199 21 -
Cash and cash equivalents 27{(b) 589,023 986,032 670,254
867,962 1,105,105 1.219.207
Total assets 8,647,473 8,684,326 7.031.900
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share Capital 14 85,000 85,000 85.000
Retained earnings 6,744,348 6,607,360 6,147 4635
Actuarial reserve (15,897) (1411 1,309
Total equity 6,813,451 6,690,949 6,233,774
Non-current liabilities
Retirement benefit cbligations 15 17,058 49 -
(ther liabilities 16 431,005 436,003 -
Deferred tax liability 17 799 3,556 936
Borrowings 20 700,600 - -
1,148,862 439,610 936
Current liabilities
Other payables 18 672,355 1,517,736 639,006
Current tax liabilities 19 - - 70,135
Borrowings 20 999 1,049 2.279
Other liabikities 16 11,806 34,982 105,750
685,160 £,553,767 817,190
Total liabilities 1,834,022 1,993,377 818,126
Total equity and liabilities 8,647,473 8,684,326 7,051,900

These financial stateme

The notes on pages 9 10 37 form an integral part of these

Auditor's report on pages 4 to 4(b}.

re heen approved for issue by the Board of Directors on:

Directors

ancial statements.

28 00T 2p1g



THE STATE INVESTMENT CORPORATION LTD

6
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - YEAR
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
Restated
Notes 2018 2017
Rs'00¢ Rs'000
INCOME
Investinent income 22 141,302 184,029
Interest income 23 663 492
Other incorme 24 19,678 3,123
Increase in fair value of investment properties - 500
Net foreign exchange gain 1,082 -
Gain on disposal of investment 4,494 -
158,219 193.144
Net change in investments at fair value through profit or loss
profit or loss 21 102,089 621,115
EXPENSES
Employee benefit expense 25 30,568 27,206
Motor vehicle running expenses 585 534
Audit and other related fees 349 9932
Other professional expenses 7,467 9.535
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 5 1,160 876
Amortisation of intangible assets 7 373 470
Repairs and maintenance 20 3
Interest expense . 28 14,643 34,982
Other general expenses 19,366 8,001
Net foreign exchange ioss - 318
Impairment of receivables 12,355 266,789
Loss on disposal of investment - 90
87,586 349923
Profit before tax 172,722 464,338
Income tax expense 19 (734) (4,443
Profit after tax 171,988 459,863
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income:
Items that may not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans (17,453) (3,277
Income tax effect 2,967 337
(14,486} (2,720)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (14,486} (2.720)
Totai comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 157,502 457,175

The notes on pages 9 to 57 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Aunditor's report on pages 4 to 4(b).
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THE STATE INVESTMENT CORPORATION LTD

STATEMENT GF CASH FLOWS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2618

o]

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash (absorbed by)/generated from operations
Interest received

Tax paid

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property. plant and equipment
Purchase of infangible assets

Purchase of investment properties
Purchase of investment in financial asset
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Loan granted

Loan recovered

Disposal of investment in financial assets
Redemption of held-to-maturity investment
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash {lows from financing activities
Interest paid

Dividend paid

Proceads from long term borrowings
Repavment of share buy back NIT

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Movement in cash and cash equivalents
At January 1,

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
At December 31,

Restated
Notes 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
27(=) (930,959) 464,863
3,204 2,123
13 {702) {3,399)
{928,347) 463,591
35 (2,919 (1.356)
7 {182) -
- (32,400)
(170,149) -
24 215
- (54.655)
- 3,009
77,453 33,034
- 11,300
(95,773) {40.833)
(37,819) -
(35,000) -
700,000 -
- (105,730)
627,181 (103,750)
(396,959) 317,008
984,983 667,975
(396,959) 317,008
27(b) 588,024 984,983

The notes on pages 9 1o 57 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Auditor's report on pages 4 to 4{b).



THE STATE INVESTMENT CORPORATION LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

[S]

@
(i)

b
—

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Statement Investment Corporation Ltd (the '‘Company’) was incorporated as a private company on
August 21, 1984 and was converted into a public company on April 7, 1992,

The address of its registered office is situated on the 15th Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kemedy
Street, Port Louis, Mauritius.

These financial statements will be submitted for consideration and approval at the forthcoming Annual
Meeting cf Shareholders of the Company.

The Company acts as the invesment arm of the Government of Mauritius and provides funds for the
reaiisation of high-growth entrepreneurial ventures and assists businesses to industry leadership
position. It also invests in quoted and unquoted financial assets.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwisc
stated, The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except that :
investrent property is stated at fair value;

investment in subsidiary companies and associates are carried at fair value through profit or Joss; and

relevant financial assets and financial liabilities are stated at fair value through profit or loss or at
amortised cost.

Basis of preparation

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations effective in the reporting period

IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the recognition, classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of
financial assets and hedge accounting. The adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments from J anuary 1,
2018 resuited in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the
financial statements. The new accounting policies are set out in notes 2.7 and 2.8. The C ompany has
elected to apply the exemption in IFRS 9 paragraph 7.2.15 not to restate prior periods in the vear of
initial application of the standard. The Company has chosen to adopt the simplified expected credit
loss model for trade receivables in accordance with IFRS 9 paragraph 5.5.15.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is based on the principle that revenue is recognised
when control of a good or service transfers to a customer. The Company has adopted IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers from January 1, 2018 which resulted in changes in
accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The new
accouniing policies are set out in note 2.15. In accordance with the transition provisions in IFRS 15.
the Company has not restated comparatives for the 2017 financial year.

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (Amendments to IFRS 2]

The amendments clarify the measurement basis for cash-settled share-based payments and the
accounting for modifications that change an award from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amerdment
has no impact on the Company's financial statements.
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10
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

[

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont'd)

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations effective in the reporting
period {cont'd)

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts {Amendments to [FRS 4)
The amendment provides two different solutions for insurance companies: a temporary exemption
from IFRS 9 for entities that meet specific requirements (applied at the reporting entity level), and the

‘overiay approach’. Both approaches are optional. The amendment has no impact on the Company’s
financial staiements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

IFRS 1 - deleted short-term exemptions covering transition provisions of IFRS 7, IAS 19 and
IFRS 10 which are no longer relevant.

LAS 28 - clarifies that the election by venture capital organisations, mutual funds, unit trusts and
similar entities to measure investments in associates or joint ventures at fair value through profit
or loss should be made separately for each associate or joint venture at initial recognition. The
amendment has no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration. The interpretation clarifies how
to determine the date of transaction for the exchange rate to be used on initial recognition of a related
asset, expense or income where an entity pays or receives consideration in advance for foreign

currency-denominated contracts. The amendment has no impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40). The amendments clarify that transfers to.
or from, investment property can only be made if there has been a change in use that is supported by
evidence. A change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property. A change in intention alone is not sufficient to support a transfer. The
amendment has no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yer effective

Certain standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations have been issued that are

mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 or later periods, but which the
Company has not early adopted.

At the reporting date of these financial statements, the following were in issue but not vet effective:

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture {(Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

[FRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Prepayment Features with negative compensation (Amendments to IFRS 9)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont'd)

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective
(cont'd)

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments to JAS 28)
Annual hnprovements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19)
Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3)

Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS §)

Where relevant, the Company is still evaluating the effect of these Standards, Amendments to

published Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective, on the presentation of its financial
statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,

or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4.

o
12

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost of acquisition less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method to write off the cost of assets to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Amnual rates
%
Buildings 2-3
Office furniture and fittings 10-25
Motor vehicles 20-25

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater that its estimated recoverable amount, it is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal of plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount and are included in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

!\J

(a)

(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Investment property

Investment property, held to earn rentals or for capital appreciaiion or both and not occupied by the
cornpany are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent io initial recognition
mvestment properties are carried at fair value, representing open-market value determined periodically
by external valuers. Changes in fair values are included in profit or loss. Land held under operating

leases is classified and accounted for by the company as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met.

Property that is under construction or development to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both is
accounted as investment property.

Intangible assets

Leasehold rights

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not

capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the
expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with & finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumpiion of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the expense category that is consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Leasehold rights are shown at historical cost, have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
acumulated depreciation. Amortization is calculated using the straight line method over its estimated
useful lives (54.5 years).

Computer sgftware

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring

to use the specific software and are amortised using the straight line method over their estimated
uzeful lives (5 vears).

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique software
that will generage economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible

assets. Direct costs include the software development emplovee costs and an appropriate portion of
relevant overheads.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMRBER 31, 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.5 Investment in subsidiaries
Investments in subdiaries are accounted for as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. In
accordance with the exception under IFRS 10 Censolidated Financial Statements, the Company docs
not consclidate subsidiaries in the financial statements.

2.6 Invesiment ip associates
Investment in associates are accounted for as financial assets at fair value though profit or joss. In
accordance with the exemption within IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, the
Company does not account for its investment in associates using the equity method.

27 Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets into one of the categories discussed below, depending on
the purpose for which the asset was acquired. Other than financial assets in a qualifying hedging
relationship, the Company’s accounting policy for each category is as follows:

(i} Fair value through profit or loss
The Company classifies the following financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL):
- debt investments that do not qualify for measurement at either amortised cost or FVOCT;
- equity investments that are held for trading;
- equity investments for which the entity has not elected to recognise fair valne gains and losses
through OCT; and
- derivative financial instruments not designated as hedging instruments.

The company had previously classified available for sale financial assets at fair value through profit
arid loss. The company has elected to apply the same policy under IFRS 9. As before, all fair value
gains and losses will continue to be recognised in the profit and loss as they arise. Held-for-trading
financial assets will continue to be measured at fair value through profit and loss under IFRS 9. The
transition from IAS 39 to IFRS 9 wili have no material impact on equity investments’ classification
and measurement due to continuity of accounting policy being applied.

(i) Amortised cost

These assets arise principally from the provision of services to customers (eg trade receivables), bur
also incorporate other types of financial assets where the objective is to hold these assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest. They are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to their acquisition or issue, and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method, less provision for impairment.

Impaiment provisions for trade receivables are recognised based on the simplified approach within

IFRS © using the lifetime expected credit iosses. During this process the probability of the nen-
payment of the trade receivables is assessed. This probability is then multiplied by the amount of the
expected loss arising fiom defanlt to determine the lifetime expected credit loss for the trade

receivables. For trade receivables. which are reported net. such provisions arz recorded in a separate
provision account with the loss being recognised within cost of sales in the statement of

comprehensive income. On confirmation that the trade receivable wiil not be collectable, the gross
carrying value of the asset is written off against the associated provision.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
2.7 Y¥irancial assets (cont'd)

(i) Amortised cost (cont'd)

Impairment provisions for receivables from related parties and loans to related parties are recognised
based on a forward looking expected credit loss model. The methodology used to determine the
amount of 1he provision is based on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition of the financial asset. For those where the credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition of the financial asset, twelve month expected credit losses zlong with gross
mteresi income are recognised. For those for which credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime
expected credit losses along with the gross interest income are recognised. For those that are
determined to be credit impaired, lifetime expected credit losses along with interest income on a net

basis are recognised.

The Company financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables and

cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and - for the purpose of the
statement of cash flows - bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within loans and borrowings in

current labilities on the statement of financial position.

2.8 Finanpcial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities into the following categories, depending on the purpose

for which the liability was acquired.

Other than financial liabilities in a qualifying hedging relationship, the Company’s accounting policy

for each category is as follows:

Other finaneial liabilities
Other financial liabilities include the following items:

Bank borrowings and debentures are initially recognised at fair value net of any transaction costs
directly attributable to the issue of the instrument. Such interest bearing liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, which ensures that any interest
expense over the period to repayment is at a constant rate on the balance of the liability carried in the
statement of financial position. For the purposes of each financial liability, interest expense includes
initial transaction costs and any premium payable on redemption, as well as any interest or coupon

payable while the liability is outstanding.

- Trade payables and other short-term monetary liabilities, which are initially recognised at fair

value and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
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2.10

(a)

2.11

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises of current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or

loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current tax

The current income tax charge is based on taxable income for the vear calculated on the basis of tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Defeired income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of reporting date

and are expected to apply in the period when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is seitled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and held within a business model whose objective is to

consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodies in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Share capital

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Retirement benefit obligations

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically defined
benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
aependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
2.11 Retirement benefit obligations (cont'd)

Defined benefit plans (cont'd)

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the
fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated amnually by independent

actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes in acturial assumptions, the returm on plan assets (excluding
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), is recognised immediately in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements recognised in other

comprehensive income shall not be classified to profit or loss in subsequent period.

The Company determines the net interest expense/(income) on the net defined benefit liability/(asset)
for the period by applying the discount rate used o measure the defined liability obligation at the
beginning of the annual peried to the net defined liability/(asset), taking into account any changes in
the net defined liability/(asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net

interest expense/(income) is recognised in profit or loss.

Service costs comprising current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on

curtailments and settlements are recognsied immediately in profit or loss.

12
—
i

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources that can be reliably estimated will be

required to settle the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the

time value of money is material),
2.13 Foreign currencies

(i} Functional and presentation currency

Items inciuded in the financial statements are measured using Mauritian rupees, the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates ("functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Mauritian rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation

currency.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POILICIES (CONT'D)
2.13 Foreign currencies (cont'd)

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign cumency transactions are transiated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settiement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items
that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the

date of the transaction.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash and cash equivalents are presented in profit or
loss within 'finance costs'. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in profit or loss

within 'other gains- net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in & foreign currency are translated using the

exchange rates at the date the fair value was determined.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at fair value through profit or

loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

2.14 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Any impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the camrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are

separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

[ ]
-
(%]

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for sales of services, stated net of discounts, returns, value added taxes, rebates
and other similar allowances. Revenue is recognised at a point in time when services have been

There are no changes to the amounts reported in the financial statements year ended December 31,
2018 under IFRS 15 to the amounts that would have been reporied had the Company continued to

report in accordance with TAS 18, Revenue.

fa) Rendering of services

*

basis.

Directorship fees on representation of directors in investee companies are recognised on a cash
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
2.15 Revenue recognition {cont'd)

(h)  Other revenues earned by the Company are recognised on the following bases:
Interest inceme - calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
*  Dividend income - when the shareholder's right to receive payment is established.
»  Rental income - as it accrues.

2.16 Pividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised in the Company's financial
statements in the period in which the dividend are declared.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial Risk Factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency and

price risk) credit risk and liguidity risk.

The Company's overail risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

A description of the significant risk factors is given below together with the risk management policies

apphicable.
{a) Market risk

(1) Curreancy risk

The Company has certain investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign

currency translation risk.

The cwrency portfolio is as follows:

MUR USD EURO GRBP TOTAL

Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
As at December 31, 2018
Investments 6,458,268 170,378 204,956 - 7,133,602
Trade and other receivables 278,740 - - - 278,740
Cash in hand and at bank 144,096 212,756 226,038 6,133 589,022
Long term receivables 5,976 - - - 5,97¢
Total assets 6,887,080 383,134 730,994 - 6,133 8,007,341
Liabilities 1,816,165 - - - 1,816,165
As at December 31, 2017
Investments 6,198,113 140,181 596,031 - 6,934,325
Trade and other receivables 118,299 - - - 118,299
Cash in hand and at bank 660,854 109,790 211,122 4,266 986,032
Long term receivables 6,511 - - - 6.511
Total assets 6,983,777 249,971 807,153 4,266 8,045,167

Liabilities 1,673,520 105,130 211,122 - 1,289,772
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3.

3.1
(a)

&)

(if)

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
Financial Risk Factors {cont'd)
Market risk (cont'd)

Currency risk (cont'd)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity 1o a reasonable possible change in the US Dollar,

GBP and Eure exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Company's profit before tax
(due to changed in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

Increase/ Sifect on
decrease loss
in rates before tax
Y Rs'000
2018
US Dellar +5 19,157
-3 {19,157)
EURD +3 36.350)
-5 (36,550
GBP +5 387
-5 (357)
2017
US Dollar +5 7.009
-3 {7,009)
EURO +5 26,410
-5 {20,.410)
GBP +5 213
-3 (213)
Price risk

The company is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the company
and classified at fair value through profit or loss. The company is not exposed to commodity price
risk. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the company diversifies its
porifolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Company.

Sensitivity analvsis

A sensitivity analysis showing the impact of the increase/decreases in the fair value of the investments
on the company's post-tax profitfor the year and on equity is shown in note 3.2,

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash flows of investments at fair value

through profit or loss (FVPL), deposits with banks and financial instifutions, as well as credit
exposures 10 customers, including outstanding receivables.
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[F]

(98]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

.1 Financial Risk Factors (cont'd)

(b} Credit risk (cont'd)

(c)

Credit risk is managed on a Company basis. For banks and financial institutions, ounly independently
rated parties are accepted.

Risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in
accordance with limits set by the board. The compliance with credit limits by customers is regularly
monitored by line management.

The Company is exposed to credit risk as follows: 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Trade receivables 16,567 66,427
Rsceivable from related parties 12,869 49,777
Financial assefs ai amortised cost 249,304 -
Cash at bank 589,023 586,032

867,763 1,102,236

The main concentration to which the Company is exposed arises on the following short term
receivables, debentures and interest receivable.

2018 2017
Related parties Rs'000 Es'000
Le Grand Baie Casino Linuted - 33,455
Government of Mauritius- COIL - 15,050
Other related companies 9,976 1,272
9,976 49777

Amount receivables for related parties represent unsecured financial assistance and with no terms ¢f

repayment. The amounts disbursed as financial assistance have been approved by the Board of
Directors.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the
availability of funding from an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The Company aims at
maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The tabie below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

{essthan  Betweenl Between2 Over

| year and 2 years and 5 years 5 years

Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At December 31, 2018
Borrowings 969 - - 700,660
Other payables 672,355 - - -
Other liabilities 11,806 - 431,005 -

685,160 - 431,005 700,000
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
3.1 Financial Risk Factors (cont'd)
{c) Liquidity risk (cont'd) Lessthan  Between1 Between2 Over
1 vear and 2 years and 5 years 5 years
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At December 31, 2017
Borrowings 1,049 - - -
Other payables 1,517,736 - - -
Uther liabilities 34,982 - 436,005 -
1,553,767 - 436,005 -
(d) Interest rate risk
As the company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the company's income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The company's intersst-rate
risk arises from banking facilities.
The sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Company's profit before tax has only an immaterial impact on the Company's equity.
3.2 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial information traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transaction on an arm's length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid price. These
instruiments are included in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily quoted equity
investments classified as trading securities or available-for-sale.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it
is available and rely as little as possible on specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

- Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instraments.

- The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash
flows based on observable vield curves.

- The fair value of the forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period, with the resulting value discounted back to present value.

- Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remajning financial instrumenis.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

3.2 Fair value estimation (cont'd)

(i) Recurring fair value measurement 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'G00 Rs'000

Investment property - - 610,600 610,000
[nvestment at fair value through profit or loss
Agriculture - - 1,314 1,314
Communications 52,503 198,240 135,494 386,237
Distribution - - 299,059 299.05¢9
Entertainment & Tourism 351,600 - 357,812 709,412
Financial Services 254,123 553,403 1,356,045 2,163,571
Gaming 392,875 - 158,674 751,549
ICT - - 40,878 40,878
Manufacturing 15,417 489,123 126,062 630,602
Other Holdings 653 - - 653
Other Services - - 11,368 11,368
Real Estate - 1,157,446 981,513 2,138,939

1,267,171 2,398,212 3,468,219 7,133,692

1,267,171 2,398,212 4,078,219 7,743,602
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMRBER 31, 2018

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
3.3 Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are;
*+  to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concerr, so that it can continue to provide
returtss for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

*  to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services cormmensurately
with the level of risk.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
ecenomic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust

the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, or sell
assets 1o reduce debt.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as total debi (as shown in the statement of financial

position) less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (i-e.,
share capital, other reserves and retained earnings).

The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at December 31, 2018 were as follows:

2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Total debt 700,000 -
Less: cash in hand and at bank {588,024) (584.983)
Net debt 111,976 (984,983)
Adjusted capital 6,813,451 5,690,949
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio 0.02 N/A

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of financial assets
The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
fmpairment calculation, based on the Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

4.1

(b)

{c)

(d)

(e)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (cont'd)

Fension benefits

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
{income) for pensions irciude the discount rate. Any changes in these assuniptions will impact the
carrying amount of pension obligations.

The company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate
that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be
required to settle the pension obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the company
considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in

which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the tenns of the related
pension obligation.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on cumrent market coaditions.
Additional information is disclosed in Note 13.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Company carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being
recognised in profit or loss. The Company engaged independent valuation specialists to determine fair
value of land situated at Le Roc, Guibies, Pailles on April 25, 2018 and land and building situated at

Quatre-Bornes on April 25, 2018. For the investment property, the valuer used market value as
valuation technique.

The determined fair value of the investment properties is most sensitive to the estimated yield as well
as the long term vacancy rate,

Fair value of securities not quoted in an active market

The fair value of securities not quoted in an active market may be determined by the Company using
valuation techniques including third party transaction values, earnings, net asset value of discounted
cash flows, dividend yield, whichever is considered to be appropriate. The Company would exercise
judgement and estimates on the quantity and quality of pricing sources used. Changes in assurnptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Limitation of sensitivity analvsis

Sensitivity analysis in respect of market risk demonstrates the effect of a change in a key assumption
while other assumptions remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the assumptions
and other factors. It should also be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear and larger or smaller
impacts should not be interpolated or extrapolated from these results.

Sensitivity analysis does not take into consideration that the Company's assets and liabilities are
managed. Other limitations include the use of hypothetical market movements to demonstrate potential

risk that only represent the Company's view of possible near-term market changes that cannot be
predicted with any ceriainty.
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NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

4.1

()

(8

{h)

(i)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (cont'd}

Asset lives and residual values

Plant and equipment are depreciated over its useful life taking into account residual values, where
appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary
depending on a number of factors. In reassessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation,
product life cycles and maintenance programmes are taken info account, Residual value assessments
consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal

values, Consideration is also given to the extent of current profits and losses on the disposal of similar
assets.

Depreciation policies
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated to their residual values over their estimated useful lives.
The residual value of an asset is the estimated net amount that the Company would currently cbtain

from disposal of the asset, if the asset were already of the age and in condition expected at the end of
its useful life.

The directors therefore make estimates based on historical experience and use best judgement to assess

the useful lives of assets and to forecast the expected residual values of the assets at the end of their
expected useful lives.

Peferred tax on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets arising from investment
properties the directors reviewed the Company's investment property portfolio and concluded that none
of the Company’s investment property portfolio are held under a business model whose cbjective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through saie. Therefore, in determining the Company's deferred taxation on investment
properties, the direciors have determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a
result, the Company has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment

properties as the Company is not subject to any capital gain taxes on disposal of its invesiment
properties.

Tuvestment entities

The company has been deemed to meet the definition of an investment entity as the following
conditions exist:

(a) The company has obtained funds for the purpose of providing investors with investment
management services.

(b) The company's business purpose, which was communicated directly to investors, is investing
solely for returns from capital appreciation and investment.
{c¢) The performance of investments made are measured and evaluated on a fair value basis.
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Office
furniture Motor
Buildings  and fittings vehicles Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'0G0
(a) 2018
COST
At January 1, 23,122 18,629 1,204 44,935
Additions - 2,919 - 2,919
Disposals - (32) - (32
At December 31, 25,122 21,516 1,204 47,842
DEPRECIATION
At Jamiary 1, 11,304 18,457 272 30,033
Charge for the vear 302 423 233 1,160
Disposal adjustments - (12) - {12)
Af December 31, 11,806 18,870 505 31,181
NET BOOK VALUES
At December 31, 13,316 2,646 699 16,661
(by 2017
COST
At Jamuary 1, 25,122 18,438 779 44,339
Additions - 191 1,165 1.356
Disposal - - (740) (740
At December 31, 25,122 18,629 1,204 44,935
DEPRECIATION
At January 1, 10,802 18,216 779 29.797
Charge for the year 502 241 233 a76
Disposal adjustment - - (740) (74G)
At December 31, 11,304 18,457 272 30,033
NET BOOK VALUES
At December 31, 13,818 172 932 14,922
{¢) There has been no additions of assets under finance lease for the year (2017: Rs.nil).
(d) The company does not have any assets under finance lease at December 31, 2018 (2017: Rs nil).
(e

Depreciation expense of Rs. 1,160,000 (2017: Rs.976,000) for the year has been fully charged to

gxXpenses.
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6. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 2018 2017
Rs'(00 Rs'000
Level 3
At January 1, 616,000 19,500
Additions - 590,000
Net gain from fair value measurement - 500
At December 31, 610,000 610,000

() The Company's investment properties consist of three properties namely, land situated at Le Roc,
Guibies Pailles, building situated at Quatre-Bornes and land at Cote D'Or. Management determined

that the investiment properties consist of two classes of assets - Land & Building - based eon the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property.

(1) The Company carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

(i) The last valuation was performed by independent valuation specialist, Mr. NP Jeetun, Chartered
Valuation Surveyor on Le Roc properties and buildings at Quatre Bornes on 25th of April 2018. A
market comparative method of valuation has been used to determine the fair value.

(iv) Management policy is to performed revaluation every 3 years by independent vaiuer. At December 31,
2018, the directors estimate the fair value of the investment property to be Rs.610m.

{v} The following amounts have been recognised in profit or loss: 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Rental Income derived from investment properties
Operating expenses arising on the investment property: 1,560 1,560
- that generated rental income during the year 563 532

(vi) During the year and as at the year-end, no restrictions on the releasability of investment properties or
the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal were present. The Company does not have any

contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs,
maintenance or enhancements.

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Leasehold Computer
rights software Total

2018 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
COST
At January 1, 15,000 10,667 25,667
Additions - 182 182
At December 31, 15,000 10,849 25,849
AMORTISATION . .
At January 1, 1,765 10,439 12,204
Charge for the year 250 123 373
At December 31, 2,015 10,562 12,577
NET BOOK VALUES

At December 31, Rs. 12,985 287 13,272
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D) Leasehold Computer
rights software Totat
2417 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
COST
At Janvary 1, 15,000 14,437 25,437
Additions - 230 230
At December 31, 15,000 10,667 25,667
AMORTISATION
At January 1, 1,515 10,219 11,734
(l:arge for the year 250 2 470
At December 31, 1,765 10,439 12,204
NET BOOK VALUES
At December 31, 13,235 238 13,463
(2} Intangible assets include leasehold rights with a remaining useful life of fifty two years.
The leasehold rights relates to land situated at:
* 1A Victoria Avenue, Quatre Bome of an extent of 4,221m” at a cost of Rs.10,000,790.
* 50P Victoria Avenue, Quatre Borne of an extent of 4,221m* at a cost of Rs.4.999,210.
(b} Amortisation charge foi the year has been fully charged to expenses.
8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES - AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
At January 1 1,673,940 1,481.929
Additions 149,835 -
Transfer to investment in associates (note 9) 573,750 -
(Decrease)/increase in fair value (note 21) (85,315) 162,011
At December 31, 2,303,230 1,673,904

The Company meets the definition of investments entity. Therefore, it does not consolidate its
subsidiaries but rather, it recognises them as investment at fair value through profit or loss. The
invesment in subsidiaries fair value is estimated by reference to the maintainable earnings, dividend
yield, net assets value of the underlying assets, observable market data and indices of similar entities as

appropriate,

IFRS 9 impact is nil on investment in subsidiary companies.
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XOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

8. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES - AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (CONT'D)

(i) Significant restrictions
he Company receives income in the form of dividends, interest and director fees from its investments

in unconsolidated subsidiaries, and there are no significant reswrictions on the transfer of funds from
these entities to the Company.

(183} Financiel support
' As per policy decision of the main shareholder, SIC intends to continue to provide support 1o some of
its unconsolidated subsidiaries, however the Company has no contractual commitment to provide any
other financial or other support to its unconsolidated subsidiaries.

The Company has no contractual commitment to provide any other financial or other support to its
unconsolidated subsidiaries.

(xv) Subsidiaries are denominated in the following currencies: 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs000
Rupee 2,303,230 1,673,940

(v} The fair value mesurement of the shares held by the company in the subsidiaries is categorised into ihe
following fair value hierarchy:

At December 31, 2018 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'G00
Investment in subsidiary companies 1,157,446 1,145,784 2,303,238
At December 31, 2017 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'0G0
Investment in subsidiary companies 1,123,046 550,894 1,673,940
(v) The table below shows the changes in level 3 instruments Investment in subsidiaries at
fair value through profit or loss
2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Opening balance 550,894 633.445
Additions 140,855 -
Reclassification 573,750 -
Loss recognised in profit or loss (119,71%) (82,551)
Closing balance 1,145,784 550,894
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9. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES - AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
At January 1, 1,620,463 989,127
Additions 29,294 573,750
Disposals (1,250) -
Transfer to investments in subsidiaries (note §) (573,750) -
Fair value movement (nofe 21) 18,342 57,586
At December 31, 1,093,299 1,620,463

For investment in associates, fair value is estimated by reference to the maintainable earnings, net
assets value of the underlying assets, obscrvable market data and indices of similar entities as

IFRS 9 impact is niil on investment in associates.



-KIRIPISQNS 0] SAIRIOOSSE WOL] PILJISSL[OT U0Q S PIT JUSUNSIAUT TEYIA o

-KSerens SurpyTew pue ssauisng sy Surpiedar uefd BuLMIonIsal € Uo pIIBQUIA SBY YITYM SREIO0SST §)1 JO U0 poddns

01 spuaur Aueduroy ayy, sesodind justuaBuuew jepdes SUIom 10] SEOURAPE JO ULIOL S17) U yoddns gerourury papracid Luedwioos o) \eak JULIND ) BULIN(]
poddns pproupu.y (1)

*Kuedwion) 91]) 03 SeNTIUS 9$3L[] WO Spuny Jo

Jaysued) S U0 SUOT0LGSal uﬁmowﬁﬂmqm Oil alu al21]t pue nm@ﬁwMOmeﬁ Ul SJIAUHSIATL 81T UIOJF 15219101 pue SPUOPIAID JO WLIO] T} UT 20U SaATaD %Hmmnﬂ.ﬁou 247,

aelsy [ - - 00°0€ - §1-03(-1¢  A1euIpio
Slabe BLEN - - - 0187 gr-ooQ-1¢  Areurpio
hfe)| - - 00°0T 00°0T g1-00Q-1¢  AreuIpIo
91eISH [N - - 00T 00'ST gI-o0Q-1¢  AreuwipiQ
SAVIARS TRTOUCUL - - 00°0¢ - SI-unf-0¢ \A.:w:ﬁ..mu.._o
ﬁﬂﬂ.ﬁ .._GUG.SWU_?SH - - 93’8 00°3¢ 1-unr-0¢ \QNESU.—O
uﬁ@ﬁdﬁﬁﬁﬁ@;ﬂﬂ Hu_.,".m MBI - - 58T ._um.wN QI-TeJA- [ ¢ .\Cmﬁ:u.ﬁo
SQVIAIRG TWMOQGSMHM - - 00°¢CT OO [orid b 1-22-1¢ QUED.mO.HDunM
SOIIfNf - - 00°€9 00°€9 g1-00-1¢  AIRUIPIO
uonnquIsIq - - see SC'Er g1-o0(I-1¢  Amuipio
uonnqLIsicl - - 00'0T 00°0Z 81-00C-1¢  Arempio
% % % %
ISTINTENY L10T 8107 L10Z 8102 pua Ry saIvyS
ya.puy I R{i0) ¢ Jo ssepD

diysisuao jo uwonxodoag

SUONDIISAY

4 PV JUSUISOAU] T[T A
PYT A 18D Suady
DALY SONELUIOIU] J1BIS
pr1 00 Aedorg pipuajdg

P17 pun,] SurseaT pue jejrde) oML A SanFLIPOY

PYIT pun,] SMo | 1o

PANWIT 00) S[AI0F S1I0SAY] UOI0)) U0

pung A1nby [ruonEN

DY e o1ueadQ) pasey puey SILINEN
P11 00 astprieg Furddoyg snijLnep
PYT 00 esIpeIRJ 22l AIn(] SNHLNeny

:SMO[O] SE 21 SOIBIO0SSE B3 UT JUSUIISIAUT 3 JO S[12d(]

SSGT Y0 LLIOEd HONOWILL ANTVA UIVI LV - SELVIDOSSY NI INTALLSTAN]

(11}

(v

8107 ‘1€ HIGWADHU QAANT AVHA - SINTAMLLV.ES TVIDNVNIA 1 OX SHLON

ALT NOIILVIAOJAGD INTINLSTANI ILEVLS HELL



THE STATE INVESTMENT CORPORATION LTD

41
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
9. INVESTMENT IS ASSOCIATES - AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(iv) Associates are denominated in the following currencies: 2018 2017
Rs'0:00 Rs'000
Rupee 799,226 1,332,052
Euro 294,073 288411
1,093,299 1,620,463
(v)  The fair value mesurement of the shares held by the company in the associates is categorised into the
following fair value hierarchy:
Level 3
2018 2017
Rs'000
Investment in associates 1,093,299 1,620,463
(vi) The table below shows the changes in jevel 3 instruments Investment in associates at
fair value through
profit or loss
2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Opening balance 1,620,463 989,127
Additions 26,204 573,750
Disposals (1,250) -
Transfer to investments in subsidiaries (note 8) (573,750) -
Fair value movement 18,542 57,586
(Closing balance 1,093,299 1,620,463
10. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Fair value through profit or loss

Quoted Unquoted Total
2018 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
At January 1,
-As previously reported 1,252,266 2,594,557 3,846,823
-Bifect of prior year adjustment (note 30) - (206,901) (206,901)
As restated 1,232,266 2,387,656 3,639,922
Capital reduction - (56,208) (56,205)
Disposals - (15,506) {15,506)
Fair value gains (note 21) 14,905 153,957 168,862

At December 31, 1,267,171 2,469,902 3,737,073
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10, INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 1.OSS (CONT'T})
Held-to-
maturity Fair value through profit or loss
Unquoted Quoted Unquoted Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'G00 Rs'0G0
2017
At January 1,
-As previously reported 774 1,077,527 2,427,397 3,505,698
-Effect of prior year adjustment - - (203,387) (203.387)
As restated 774 1,077,527 2,224,010 3,302,311
Disposals (774) (18,433) (14,700) (33,507)
Fair value movement (Note 21) - 193,172 178,346 371,518
At December 31, - 1,252,266 2,387,636 3,639,922
The fair value mesurement of the shares held by the company in the other investments at fair value
through profit or loss is categorised into the following fair value hierarchy:
(i) At December 31, 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'(00
Investments fair value through
profit or loss 1,267,171 1,240,767 1,229.135 3,737,073
At December 31, 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Investments fair value through
profit or loss 1,252,255 1,536,687 850,980 3,638,622
(i}  Other investments at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in the following currencies:

2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
3,390,213 3,259,957
135,979 140.181
210,881 239,784
3,737,073 3,639,922
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10.

(iif)

11.

INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONT'D)

The table below shows the changes in Level 3 instruments for the year ended December 31, 2018:

Fair value

through
profit or loss
Rs'300
Onening balance as previously reported
-As previously reported 1,057,581
-Effect of prior year adjustiment {206,901)
-As restated 850,980
Transfer from Level 2 330,252
Capital reduction (56,205)
Disposal (15,506)
(Gains recognised in profit or loss 119,614
Closing balance : 1,229,135

The table below shows the changes in Level 3 instruments for the yvear ended December 31, 2017:
Available for  Held-to-

sale maturity Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Opening balance as previously reported 1,063,175 774 1,063,949
Effect of prior year adjustment (203,387) - (203,387)
As restated 859,788 774 860.562
Transfers (7,137 (774) {(7.91H)
Movement in profit or loss (1,671) - (1,671)
Closing balance 850,980 - 850,980
NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES 2017
Rs'000
Loans to employees (note 11(a)) 6,511

The loans to empioyees bear fixed rate of interest and the monthly repayments are deductible from the
employee's salaries.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABILES 2018 2017
Rs'G00 Rs'000
Trade receivables 16,567 66.427
Prepayments - 753
Receivables from related parties - 49,777
Other receivables . - 2.095
Rs. 16,567 119,052

Impairment of receivables

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all receivables.
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{1)

(it}

(iii)

(iv)

(v}

13.

@

(i)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT'D)

Impairment of receivables (cont'd)
To measure the expected credit losses, receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.

In 2017, the impairment of trade receivables was assessed based on the incurred loss model.
Individual receivables which were known to be uncollectible were written off by reducing the
carrying amount directly. The other receivables were assessed collectively to determine whether there
was objective evidence that an impairment had been incurred but not vet been identified. For these
receivables the estimated impairment losses were recognised in & separate provision for impainment.

In 2017, trade receivables were recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impainment of trade receivables was established when there was objective evidence that the Company
would not be able o collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.

None of the other classes within trade and other receivables coutain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable
mentioned above. The company does not hold any collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of the Company's trade and other receivables are denominated in the following
currencies:

2018 2017
Rs. Rs.
Rupee 16,567 119,032
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST
Non-current Current
2018 2017 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs '000 Rs'000
Loans to employees (note 13(1)) 5,976 -
Treasury bills (note 13(ii)) - - 242158 -
Related parties (note 13(jii)) - - 12,869 -
Other receivables (note 13(iii) - - 19,501 -
Less loss allowance (note 13{(iv)) - - (12,355) -
5,976 - 262,173 -

The loans to employees bear fixed rate of interest and the monthly repayments are deductible from the
employee's salaries. The short term portion is included in other receivables.

Due to the short-term nature of the treasury bills, the carrying amount is considered to be the same as
their fair value. For the majority of the non-current receivables, the fair values are also not
significantly different to their carrying amounts.
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(iii)

(1v)

)

(vi)
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i)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (CONT'I})

Other receivables and related parties

These amounts generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the
Compary. Interest may be charged at commercial rates where the terms of repayment exceed six
months. Coliateral is not normally obtained. The non-current other receivables are due and payable
within more than one years from the end of the reporting period.

The loss allowance for financial assets at amortised cost as at December 31, 2017 is insignificant,

Imapirment has been made in financial asset at amortised cost and recognised in profit or loss as
follows:

Related Other
parties receivables Total
Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'D00
Loss allowance recognised in profit or loss at
December 31, 2018 2,743 8,612 12,355

All of the financial assets at amortised cost are denominated in Mauritian Rupees. As a result, there is
no exposure to foreign currency risk.

As of December 31, 2018 financial assets at amortised cost amounting to Rs.12,355.000 were
impaired.

SHARE CAPITAL 2018 & 2017 2018 & 2017
Number Rs'000

Authorised. Issued & Fully Paid
Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 8,500,010 §5,006

RETIREMENT BENEYIT OBLIGATION

The pension plan of the Company is a final salary defined benefit plan for senior employees and is

wholly funded. It provides for a pension at retirement and a benefit on death or disablement in
service before retirement.

2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000

Amount recognised in the statement of financial position:
Defined pension pian (17,058) (49)
Amount charged to profit or loss:
Defined pension plan 1,267 1,483
Amount charged to other comprehensive income:

- Defined pension plan : 17,453 3,277

The company contributes to a defined benefit pension. The plan is a final salary plan, which provides
benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payable for life. The level of

benefits provided depends on members' length of service and their salary in the final vears leading up
to retirement.
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(11)

(iii)

(iv)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION (CONT'D)

The assets of the plan are independently administered by SICOM Lid.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and present value of the defined benefit
obligations were carried out at December 31, 2018 by SICOM Lid (Actuarial valuer). The present

value of the defined benefit obligations, and the related current service cost and past service cost,
were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The amounts recegnised in the statements of financial position are as follows:

2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000)
Present value of funded obligations 78,818 69.503
Fair value of plan assets (61,760) (69.434)
Asset in the statement of financial position 17,058 49

The reconciliation of the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit liability
is as follows:

2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
At January 1, 49 (3,192)
Charged to profit or loss 1,267 1,483
Charged to other comprehensive income 17,453 3,277
Contributions paid (1,711) {1,519)
Balance at December 31, 17,058 49

The movement in the defined benefit obligations over the year is as follows:

2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'00D
At January 1, 69,503 60,440
Current service cost 1,704 2,335
Interest expense 4,684 3,324
Actuarial gain 15,647 4.74
Benefits paid (12,720) (1,337)
At December 31, 76,818 69,503
The movement in the fair value of the plan assets of the year is as follows:
2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
At January 1, 69,454 63,632
Return on plan assets 4,336 3,523
Contributions by plan participants . 835 739
Contributions by the employer 1,670 1,479
Benefits paid (12,729) {1.383)
Asset (loss)/gain (1,806) 1,464

At December 31, 61,760 69,454
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15, RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION (CONT'D)
(v) The amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows: 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Current service cost 1,704 2,335
Employee contributions (835) (739)
Fund expenses 50 ga
Interest expense 348 (199)
Total included in employee benefit expense 1,267 1,483
(vi) The amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:
2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Liability experience losses {15,647) (4,741)
Actuarial (loss)/gain (1,806) 1,464
(17,453) (3,279
(vit) The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
2018 2017
% %a
Government securities and cash 56.50 57.70
Loans 3.80 3.90
Local equities 13.50 15.50
Overseas bonds and equities 25.60 2230
Property 0.60 0.60
100.00 100.00
{viil) The principal actuarial assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valautions were:
2018 2017
%o %
Priscount rate 6.74 5.50
Future salary growth rate 4.00 4.00
Future pension growth rate 3.00 3.00
The discount rate is determined by reference to market yield on bonds.
(ix) Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligations at end of the reporting date:
Increase Decrease
December 31, 2018 Rs. Rs.
Discount rate 1% lower/higher Rsl1id M Rs93M
Expected salary growth 1% increase/decrease Rs 42 M Rs 3.7M
Life expectancy 1 year increase/decrease Rs 21 M Rs 2.1 M
December 31. 2017
Discount rate {1% movement) Rs10.0 M Rs79M
Future long-term salary assumption (1% movement) Rs 42 M Rs 3.6 M
Life expectancy (1 year movement) Rs 1.7M Rs 1.7M
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15, RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION (CONT'D)

(x} Anincrease/decrease of 1% in other principal actuarial assumptions would not have a material impact
on defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period.

The sensitivity above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on net
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occuring at the end of
reporting period.

The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as
some of the assumptions may be correlated.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from
prior years other than the change in discount rate.

(xi) The defined benefit pension plan exposes the company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, salary
risk, Interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.

(xil) The funding requirements are based on the pension fund's actuarial measurement framewosk set out in
the funding policies of the plan.

16. OTHER LIABILITIES 2018 2017

Rs'000 Rs'000
At January 1, 470,987 105,750
Repayment during the year (39,982) (105,750)
Contracted during the year - 436,003
Interest payable 11,806 34,982
At December 31, 442,811 470,987
The other liailities are repayable as follows: 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Within one vear 11,806 24,982
After one year and before three years 431,005 436,003
442,811 470,987

17. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

Deferred income tax is calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method at 17%
(2017 17%).

There is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
deferred income tax liabilities when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority on
the same entity. The following amounts are shown in the statement of financial position:

2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'009
Deferred tax liabilities 799 3,556
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17. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (CONT'D)
The movement on deferred income tax account is as follows: 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
At January 1, 3,556 936
Iovement in profit or loss 210 3,177
Credit to the other comprehensive income (2.967) (357)
At December 31, 799 3,556
Deferved tax Habilities, deferred tax credit in the profit or loss are attribuiable to the following iters:
At
At January 1, Chargeto  Creditedto  December 31,
2018 profit or loss OCl 2018
Rs'000 Rs'0C0 Rs'0D00 Rs'G00
Deferred income tax
Accelerated tax depreciation 3,098 601 - 3,699
Retirement benefit obligations 458 (391) (2,967) {2,900
Net deferred tax liabilities 3,556 210 (2,967 799
At
At Januwary 1,  Charge to Credited o December 31,
2017 Profit or loss OCl 2017
Deferred income tax Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000
Accelerated tax depreciation 457 2,641 - 3,098
Retivement benefit obligations 479 536 (357) 458
Net deferred tax liabilities 936 3,177 (557) 3,556
18, OTHER PAYABLES 2018 2017
Rs'000 R&'000
Payable to Government of Mauritius - ISP {(note 32) 548,910 a54.126
Other payables 123,445 563.610
672,355 1,517.736
The canving amounts of other payables approximate their fair value.
- The amount payable to Government of Mauritius is in respect of the Investment Support Programme
(ISP) and represents the cash held by the Company in a fiduciary capacity and are non-interest
- The other payable to Government of Mauritius are non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
19. INCOME TAX 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
{a) Statement of financia] position
AtJuly 1, 2n 70,155
Charge for the year 427 1,266
Payment for statutory objection - (1.3531)
Assessment 2003 10 2017 on deemed interest - {6€,044}
Provision for CSR 97 -
Paid during the vear {702 (.04
At June 30, (199) {219
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19, INCOME TAX (CONT'D)
(b) Statement of profit or loss 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Current tax on the adjusted profit for the year at 17% (2017: 17%) 427 1,266
Provision for CSR G7 -
Deferred tax movement (note 17) 210 3,177
Charge for the year 734 4,443

The tax on the company's profit before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the basic tax rate of the company as follows:

2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Profit before taxation 172,722 467,852
2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Tax calculated at a rate of 17% (2017: 17%) 29,363 79,535
Tax effect of :
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 13,344 497
Income not subject to tax (42,670) (75,539)
Praovision for CSR 97 -
Charge for the year 734 4,443
20. BORROWINGS 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Non-current
Debentures
SBM 500,000 -
Maubank 200,000 -
' 700,000 -
Current
Bank overdraft 999 1,049

(a) The bank overdraft, which is denominated in Mauritian rupee, is secured by floating charges on the
assets of the Company and carries interest at the rate of PLR + 3.75% p.a.

(b) The exposure of the company's borrowings to interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates
is within six months.

{¢) The carrying amount of borrowings approximate their fair value.

(d) Debentures carry an interest rate of 5.85% per annum with New Mauritius Hotels Lid, Lottotech Ltd
and SBM Holdings Ltd investment pledged as secutity

fe} Maturity date on debentures 1s 5 years to September 2023.
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21. NET CHANGE IN INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROYTIT OR LOSS
2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Fair value movement
Investment in subsidiaries (note 8) (85,315) 182.011
Investment in associates (note 9) 18,542 57,586
Other investments (note 10) 168,862 371,518
Net change on investments at fair value through profit or loss 102,089 621,115
220 INVESTMENT INCOME 2018 2017
Rs'300 Rs'000
Dividend income 141,302 182,394
Interest on debentures - 1.633
141,302 184.029
23, INTEREST INCOME 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Staff loan 3846 447
Bank deposits 277 45
663 492
24, OTHER INCOME 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Management fees 1,500 1,500
Rental income 2,733 1,560
Directorship Fees 3,718 4,424
Other miscellaneous income 2,723 412
Profit on dispesal of plant and equipment 4 215
10,678 8,123
25. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Wages and salaries, including termination benefits 28,914 25,588
Social security costs 164 135
Pension costs - defined benefit plans 1,790 1,483
30,868 27,206
26. INTEREST EXPENSE 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Share Buy-Back (NIT) - 25,713
Land at Cote D'or (SICOM Trustee) 2,837 9.269
Interest on bond 11,806 - -
14,643 34,982
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27. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Restated
Notes 2018 2017
() Cash generated from operations Rs'000 Rs'000
Profit before tax 172,722 464,338
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 5 1,160 976
Amortisation of intangible assets 7 373 470
(Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 4 (215)
(Gains)/Loss on disposal of investment (4,494} a0
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 19 (102,089) (621,115}
Interest expense 24 14,643 34682
Interest income (3,294) (2,123)
Increase in provision of retirement benefit obligation (444) (36)
Changes in working capital:
- irade and other receivables 108,996 186,036
-Financial asset at amortised cost {268,149 -
-other liabilities (23,176) -
- trade and other payables (827,203) 401,462
Cash (absorbed by)/generated from operations (930,959) 464,863
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 20138 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Cash in hand and at bank 403,113 31.906
Cash held on behalf of GOM for ISP scheme 548,910 054,126
Casly at bank and in hand 580,023 086,032
Bank overdrafts (note 20) (999) (1,049)
588,024 084,983
While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.
28. DIVIDENDS 2018 2017
Rs'000 Rs'000
Dividend proposed and paid during the year at
Rs.4.12 per share (2017: Nil) 35,000 -
29. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(2} Impact on the financial statements

IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 were adopted without restating comparative information. Any adjustments
arising from the new accounting policies are not reflected in the comparatives year ended December
31, 2017 but are recognised in the opening reserves on January 1, 2018.

The effect of IFRS 9 is nil on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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30.

(a)

(b)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Reclassifications of financial instruments on adoption of IFRS 9

On the date of initial application, January 1, 2018, the financial instruments of the Company were as
follows, with any reclassifications noted:

Measurement category Camrying amount

Original New

(IAS 39) (IFRS 9) Original New Difference

Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

Mon-current financial assets
Investment in subsidiary
companies FVTPL FVTPL 1,673,940 1,673,940 -
Investment in associates  FVTPL FVTPL 1,620,463 1,620,463 -
Financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss FVTPL FVTPL 3,639,622 3,639,922 -

For equity investments that satisfy certain conditions, the Company has elected to present fair value
changes on these quoted/unquoted equity securities in Profit and Loss under IFRS 9. Accordingly,
these assets are categorised as “Equity investments at fair value through Profit and Loss™. All other
financial assets will be held at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). Fair values were
determined using valuation techniques as determined by SIC’s management. The investments in
equity instraments have been fair valued through profit and loss in preceding years, as such this will
have no eifect on the transition from IAS 39 to IFRS 9.

There are no changes to the amounts reported in the financial statements year ended December 31,
2018 under IFRS 15 to the amounts that would have been reported had the Company continued to
report in accordance with IAS 18, Revenue.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

Prior year adjustment arose in respect of valuation of an investment which was overstated. The prior
year adjustment has been adopied retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.

The effect on the statements of financial position are as follows: Financial asset
at fair value
through Retained
profit or loss earnings
Rs'000 Rs'000
Balance as reported at Dec 31, 2016
- as previously stated 3,505,697 6,350,852
- effect of prior year adjustment (203,387) (203,387)
- as restated 3,302,310 6,147,463
Balance as reported at Dec 31, 2017
- as previously stated 3,846,823 6,814,261
- effect of change in deferred tax rate (206,901) (206,901)
- as restated 3,639,922 6,607,360
The effect on the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as follows:
2017
Rs'000
Decrease in movement in fair value through profit or loss 3,514

Decrease in: profit after tax 3,514
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j o]

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)
The Company has provided the following bank guarantees:

«  Casino de Maurice in favour of State Bank of Mauritius amounting to NIL (2017 : NIL).
«  Sun Casino Ltd in favour of State Bank of Mauritius amounting to NIL (2017 : NiL).

»  Domaine Les Pailles Limitée in favour of The Mauritivs Commercial Bank Lid amounting to NIL
(2017 : WIL).

For the year December 31, 2018, the Company has recorded an impairment of Rs 2,742,669/~ relating
to amounts owed by related parties (2017: Rs 172 M). This assessment is undertaken each {inancial

year by examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party
operates.

Transactions with Govemment of Mauritius.

There are various transactions and outstanding balances with the Government of Mauritius. The
amounts involved and the terms and conditions are set out in the following relevant notes 11 and 18.

INVESTMENT SUPPORT PROGRAM (ISP)

In 2009 Government introduced the Mechanism for Transitional Support for the Private Sector
(MTSP) under the Additional Stimulus Package (ASP) to assist firms facing difficulties in the context
of the world's economic crisis by way of: equity support, liquidity/working capital including guarantce
for bank support, asset purchase, swap or lease back for asset rich but cash peor enterprises.

In August 2010, the MTSP was renamed Economic Restructuring and Competitiveness Program
(ERCP) which took over the role of MTSP.

Foliowing the 2012 Budget Speech, the Vice Prime Minister and Minister of Finance and Economic
Development announced the setting up of the National Resilience Fund (NRF), which in tum fock
over the role and responsibilities of ERCP.

GOM as such is not in a position to enter info agreement with individual beneficiaries. Therzfore, the
State Investment Corporation Ltd is assisting the enterprises affected by the financial slowdown. on
behalf of MOFED, in terms of equity, debentures, loans and working capital. It has the responsibility
for disbursing te the beneficiaries and receiving the repayment from the later. SIC also acts as

Guarantor on behalf of the Government of Mauritins. Agreements are signed between the beneficiary
clients and SIC.
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33,

INVESTMENT SUPPORT PROGRAM (1SP) (CONT'D)

As at date several schemes under the ISP programme (formerly RWG programume) have been
introduced by the Government and SIC has been entrusted with the management and implementation

of the different schemes set up by Government. The different schemes under the ISP programme are
as follows: '

- Stimulus Package

- LLzasing Modemnisation Scheme.

- Export Credit Insurance Scheme

- ERCP Credit Financing Scheme

- Planters Harvest Scheme

- Isport facility

- Direct support under stimulus package
- Technopreneurship Scheme

- Women enterprise Scheme

- ICT Centre of exceilence

The State Investment Corporation Ltd does not bear any of the credit risks of the funds' beneficiaries
given its fiduciary role amounts in ail the schemes under ISP. Further SIC doesn't bear anyv risk in
relation to the guarantees they provide to the beneficiaries as the Government of Mauritius guarantees
all the schemes and indemnifies SIC against any losses incurred in relation to the ISP schemes as
stated in the memorandum of understanding (MOU) section 6, paragraph 2, where MOFED has agreed
to "guarantee”, make good and cover all losses/defaults incurred by SIC™,

In prior years cash received under each scheme were not refuaded to Ministry of Finance (MOFED).
There were no obligations to remit the funds. In the absence of the pass through arrangements an asset
and a corresponding liability were recognised in the books representing amownt receivable from
beneficiaries and amount payable to MOFED respectively.

However, an agreement has been reached between the parties in 2013 and SIC now has the obligation
to refund the cash flows on a regular basis. This is effective as from January 1, 2013,

During the year ended December 31, 2015 SIC had made refunds and provided in regular returns to
the MOFED as required per the agreement.

The formalisation of the contractual terms regarding the remittance of cash has resulted in the
derecognition of the assets and liabilities relating to the various schemes.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY
At December 31, 2018, the company had contingent liabilities in respect of the.following:
Corporate Guarantees for an amount of Rs.13.7M and import loans amounting to Rs.2.9M have been

giverr on behalf of the Government relating to the Investment Support Program, from which it is

anticipated that no material loss will arise. In any case should any loss materialise, the loss will be
borne by the Govermment of Mauritius.
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34. COMMITMENTS 2018 2017
Rs'0¢0 Rs'000

(a) Capital commitments - -

The Company does not hold any Capital Commitments as at close of financial year ended December
31, 2018.

(b) Operating lease commitments

The future minimum lease rentals payable under non cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2018 2017
Rs'040 Rs'000
Within one year 546 546
After one year but no more than five years 2.184 2,184
More than five years 25,935 26,481
28,663 29,211

35. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO YEAR END

Following the decisions of the Board of SIC on 18 September 2019, there has been a change in the
shareholding of SIC in Yihai Investment Ltd from 99.99% to 48.96%.

36. ULTIMATE SHAREHOLDER

The ultimate shareholder of the Company is the Government of Mauritius.



